

# Office Package Insurance Policy

# Contents

Introduction to the Office Package Insurance Policy	2
About the Office Package Insurance Policy	2
Identity of Insurers	2
General Conditions	3
Claims Procedure	5
Claims Conditions	5
Complaints Procedure and Regulatory Information	7
Exclusions Applicable to all Sections	8
Property Damage Insurance	10
Business Interruption Insurance	20
Liability Insurance	26
Computer Equipment Insurance	34
Money Insurance	44
Fidelity Insurance	48

#### **Data Privacy Notice**

Choice Insurance Agency is the trading name of Choice Insurance Agency Ltd. We are the data controller of any personal information you provide to us or personal information that has been provided to us by a third party. We collect and process information about you in order to arrange insurance policies and to process claims. Your information is also used for business purposes such as fraud prevention and detection and financial management. This may involve sharing your information with third parties such as insurers, brokers, insurance intermediaries such as Managing General Agents, reinsurers, claims handlers, loss adjusters, credit reference agencies, service providers, professional advisors, our regulators, police and government agencies or fraud prevention agencies.

We may record telephone calls to help us monitor and improve the service we provide. For further information on how your information is used and your rights in relation to your information please see

http://www.choiceinsuranceagency.co.uk/privacy-policy. If you are providing personal data of another individual to us, you must tell them you are providing their information to us and show them a copy of this notice.

Ascot Office Policy Wording V1 Page 1 of 52

# Introduction to the Office Package Insurance Policy

This document sets out the conditions of the contract of insurance with us. Your policy is evidence of that contract. You should read it carefully and keep it in a safe place. In return for having accepted your premium we will in the event of injury loss or damage happening within the period of insurance provide insurance as described in the following pages and referred to in your schedule. If after reading these documents you have any questions please contact your broker.

All Insurers fully support the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the Financial Ombudsman Service.

# About the Office Package Insurance Policy

This property insurance has been arranged by Choice Insurance Agency Limited and is underwritten by Ascot Syndicate 1414 at Lloyd's. You should read the terms and conditions detailed in this policy including how to make a claim. Please read them carefully so that you know what cover is provided and what you should do if you need to make a claim.

The insurer shall not be bound to accept renewal of any insurance and may at any time cancel any insurance document in accordance with the section 'Cancelling Your Cover'.

This policy and the schedule are important documents. Please keep them in a safe place where you can find them should you need to refer to them in the future.

Should you need to discuss any aspect of the cover then please call the agent with whom you effected this insurance.

In deciding to accept this insurance and in setting the terms and premiums we have relied on the information you have given. You must take all reasonable care to provide complete and accurate answers to the questions we ask you when you take out, make changes to and renew your policy

When we are notified of a change we will tell you whether this affects your policy, for example whether we are able to accept the change and if so whether the change will result in revised terms and/or a revised premium being applied to your policy

If we are not able to accept the change and it becomes necessary to cancel this insurance we will do so as described within the cancellation conditions contained within the policy.

You and we are free to choose the laws applicable to this policy. As we are based in England, we propose to apply the laws of England and Wales and by purchasing this policy you have agreed to this.

This insurance relates only to those sections of the policy which are shown on the schedule as being included.

For and on behalf of insurers

Mark Williams, Managing Director of Choice Insurance Agency Ltd.

Acting on behalf of Ascot Syndicate 1414 at Lloyd's

# **Identity of Insurers**

#### Ascot Syndicate 1414 at Lloyd's

Syndicate 1414 at Lloyd's is managed by Ascot Underwriting Limited which is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Authority. Registered in England and Wales No. 04098461. Registered Office: 20 Fenchurch Street, London, United Kingdom EC3M 3BY.

# **General Conditions**

#### 1 Duty of Fair Presentation

You must make a fair presentation of the risk in a manner which would be reasonably clear and accessible before entering into this Policy including

If You knew You did not provide a fair presentation of the risk or if You did not care whether You made a fair presentation of the risk We may avoid this Policy and retain all premiums and You shall reimburse Us in respect of all payments already made by Us

In all other cases if You did not provide a fair presentation of the risk Our rights are set out below

- 1) if We would not have entered into this Policy if You had made a fair presentation of the risk We may avoid this Policy and return all premiums to You and You shall reimburse us in respect of all payments already made by Us
- 2) if We would have entered into this Policy but on different terms other than as to premium this Policy will be treated as if it had been entered into on those different terms
- 3) in addition if We would have entered into this Policy but would have charged a higher premium We may reduce proportionately the amount to be paid on any claim by reference to the calculation below in which "X" represents the percentage of the full value of the claim that We shall be required to pay
  - X = premium charged divided by the premium that would have been charged if You made a fair presentation of the risk all multiplied by 100

#### 2 Conditions Precedent and Warranties

It is a condition precedent to Our liability that You comply with all terms, conditions and exclusions of this Policy, insofar as they relate to anything to be done or complied with by You.

Where:

(i) there has been a failure to comply with a term (express or implied) of this Policy, other than a term which defines the risk as a whole;

and

(ii) compliance with such term would tend to reduce the risk of loss of a particular kind and/or loss at a particular location and/or loss at a particular time, the Insurer cannot rely on the breach of such term to exclude, limit or discharge its liability if the Insured shows that the failure to comply with such term could not have increased the risk of the loss which actually occurred in the circumstances in which it occurred.

If You breach any warranty in this Policy, Our liability under the Policy shall be suspended from the time of the breach until the time when the breach is remedied (if it is capable of being remedied). We will have no liability to the Insured for any loss which occurs, or which is attributable to something happening, during the period when the Insurer's liability is suspended.

#### 3 The Insured at his own expense shall

- I. take all reasonable precautions to prevent or diminish loss destruction or damage or any occurrence or cease any activity which may give rise to liability under this Policy and to maintain all buildings furnishings ways works machinery plant caravans and vehicles in sound condition
- II. exercise care in the selection and supervision of employees
- III. as soon as possible after discovery cause any defect or danger to be made good or remedied and in the meantime shall cause such additional precautions to be taken as the circumstances may require
- **4** It is a condition precedent to our liability that we are notified of any alteration of the following Items or Sections occurring after commencement of this Policy and have agreed to such alterations in writing
  - I. the Business be wound up or carried on by a liquidator or receiver or permanently discontinued or
  - II. the Insured's interest cease otherwise than by death
  - III. any alteration be made either in the Business or in the Premises or property therein the occupation of any Insured Person or any other circumstances whereby the risk is increased

**5** This Policy shall be avoided if the Insured's interest ceases and nothing herein contained shall give any right against the Company to any person other than Insured except to a transferee approved by the Company

**6** If any part of the Premium or Renewal Premium is based on estimates provided by the Insured the Insured shall keep an accurate record containing all relevant particulars and shall allow the Company to inspect such record The Insured shall within

one month after the expiry of each Period of Insurance provide such information as the Company may require The Premium shall then be adjusted and the difference paid by or allowed to the Insured

#### 7 Cancellation when the premium is paid annually

This Policy may be cancelled by

the Insured giving written instruction to the Company

OI

the Company sending 30 days written notice to the last known address of the Insured

Cancellation will be effective from

the receipt of valid instruction from the Insured provided that where a Certificate of Insurance has been issued as a statutory requirement to provide evidence of cover cancellation will only be effective from the date of receipt of the Certificate(s) of Insurance by the Company

or

the expiry of the 30 days written notice sent by the Company

The Insured will be entitled to a proportionate return of premium in respect of the unexpired portion of the current Period of Insurance provided that no claim has been made in that Period nor any incident occurred that might give rise to a claim

## 8 Cancellation when the premium is paid monthly

The Insured may cancel this Policy by giving written instruction to the Company and cancellation will be effective from the date of receipt of valid instructions provided that where a Certificate of Insurance has been issued as a statutory requirement to provide evidence of cover cancellation will only be effective from the date of receipt of the Certificate(s) of Insurance by the Company The Insured will be responsible for cancellation of the relevant Direct Debit Mandate

Should the Insured cancel or fail to comply with the credit agreement relating to this Policy and fail to pay immediately to the Company the full amount of premium or fail to take the action specified in a default notice issued by the Company before the date shown therein the insurance by this Policy is thereupon cancelled The Company may cancel this Policy by sending 14 days written notice to the last known address of the Insured who will return to the Company any Certificate(s) of Insurance issued as a statutory requirement

**9** All the Sums Insured Limits of Indemnity Limits of Liability and any other restrictions on the amount of the Company's liability stated in this Policy will apply as maximum limits to the Company's liability irrespective of the number of persons entitled to indemnity under this Policy

For the purposes of the Sums Insured Limits of Indemnity Limits of Liability and any other restrictions on the amount of the Company's liability the Insured and all other persons entitled to indemnity under this Policy shall be treated as one party or legal entity so that there will be only a single contract of insurance between the Company as one party and the Insured and all other persons entitled to indemnity as the other party

**10** Unless the parties have agreed otherwise in writing any dispute concerning the interpretation of the Policy shall be governed and construed in accordance with English law and shall be resolved within the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of England and Wales

# 11. Several Liability

The liability of an insurer under this contract is several and not joint with other insurers party to this contract. An insurer is liable only for the proportion of liability it has underwritten. An insurer is not jointly liable for the proportion of liability underwritten by any other insurer. Nor is an insurer otherwise responsible for any liability of any other insurer that may underwrite this contract.

The proportion of liability under this contract underwritten by an insurer (or, in the case of a Lloyd's syndicate, the total of the proportions underwritten by all the members of the syndicate taken together) is shown in this contract.

In the case of a Lloyd's syndicate, each member of the syndicate (rather than the syndicate itself) is an insurer. Each member has underwritten a proportion of the total shown for the syndicate (that total itself being the total of the proportions underwritten by all the members of the syndicate taken together). The liability of each member of the syndicate is several and not joint with other members. A member is liable only for that member's proportion. A member is not jointly liable for any other member's proportion. Nor is any member otherwise responsible for any liability of any other insurer that may underwrite this contract. The business address of each member is Lloyd's, One Lime Street, London EC3M 7HA. The identity of each member of a Lloyd's syndicate and their respective proportion may be obtained by writing to Market Services, Lloyd's, at the above address.

Although reference is made at various points in this clause to "this contract" in the singular, where the circumstances so require this should be read as a reference to contracts in the plural.

# Claims Procedure

#### **How to Report a Claim**

Should You need to report or make a claim to Us, please contact Our specialist claims handler Woodgate and Clark Limited, whose details are below. You may if You wish also advise Your insurance adviser or Our Binding Underwriter to do this on Your behalf.

Woodgate and Clark Limited 42 Kings Hill Avenue Kings Hill West Malling Kent ME19 4AJ

Claims Telephone: +44 (0) 1732 520273 Out of office Telephone: +44 (0) 1732 520270

Email: newclaim@woodgate-clark.co.uk

It will be helpful when reporting a claim if You are able to advise the Policy number and brief details of the claim. What to do in the event of a claim

You should take all reasonably practicable steps to mitigate or reduce further Damage or Bodily Injury. No prior approval is required.

If possible provide evidence in the form of photos of damage, injury and documentation including quotes, invoices or receipts.

You should not admit liability even if asked to do so by a third party.

You shall give Us or Our representative all necessary assistance.

Complete and return any claim form sent to You, as soon as possible.

# **Claims Conditions**

- If the Insured makes a fraudulent claim under this Policy the Insurers shall not be liable to pay the Insured any sums in respect of the fraudulent claim. The Insurers may recover from the Insured any sums that the Insurers have already paid to the Insured in respect of the fraudulent claim. The Insurers may by notice to the Insured treat this Policy as terminated with effect from the date of the Insured's fraudulent act.
- 2 On the discovery of any circumstance or event which may give rise to a claim under this Policy the Insured shall
  - (A) notify the Company in writing forthwith
  - (B) give immediate notice to the Police Authority in respect of loss destruction or damage (other than by fire or explosion) caused by malicious persons or thieves if insured by this Policy
  - (C) carry out and permit to be taken any action which may be reasonably practicable to prevent further loss destruction or damage and to minimise or check any interruption of or interference with the Business or to avoid or diminish the loss
  - (D) as soon as possible after discovery cause any defect or danger to be made good or remedied and in the meantime shall cause such additional precautions to be taken as the circumstances may require
  - (E) within 30 days (7 days in the case of Damage caused by riot civil commotion strikers locked-out workers persons taking part in labour disturbances or malicious persons if insured by this Policy) after the circumstances or event or of the expiry of the Indemnity Period or such further time as the Company may allow at his own expense deliver to the Company
    - (1) full information in writing of the claim
    - (2) details of any other insurance relating to the claim
    - (3) all such business books documents proofs information explanation and other evidence as may be reasonably required all of which information and details may be produced by the Insured's professional accountants or auditors who are regularly acting as such their report being prima facie evidence of such information and details
    - (4) if demanded a statutory declaration of the truth of the claim and of any matter connected with it
- 3 No claim under this Policy shall be payable unless the terms of Claims Condition 2 have been complied with

- 4 If the Company elects or becomes bound to reinstate or replace any property the Insured shall at his own expense produce and give to the Company all such plans documents books and information as the Company may reasonably require The Company shall not be bound to reinstate exactly or completely but only as circumstances permit and in reasonably sufficient manner and shall not in any case be bound to expend in respect of any one of the items insured more than the sum insured thereon
- (A) On the happening of any loss destruction or damage in respect of which a claim is or may be made under this Policy the Company and every person authorised by the Company may without thereby incurring any liability and without diminishing the right of the Company to rely upon any conditions of this Policy enter take or keep possession of the building or premises where the loss destruction or damage has happened and may take possession of or require to be delivered to them any of the property hereby insured and may keep possession of and deal with such property for all reasonable purposes and in any reasonable manner This condition shall be evidence of the leave and licence of the Insured to the Company so to do If the Insured or anyone acting on his behalf shall not comply with the requirements of the Company or shall hinder or obstruct the Company in doing any of the abovementioned acts then all benefit under this Policy shall be forfeited The Insured shall not in any case be entitled to abandon any property to the Company whether taken possession of by the Company or not
  - (B) No admission offer promise payment or indemnity shall be made or given by or on behalf of the Insured without the written consent of the Company which shall be entitled to take over and conduct in the name of the Insured the defence or settlement of any claim or to prosecute any claim in the name of the Insured for its own benefit and shall have full discretion in the conduct of any proceedings and in the settlement of any claim

The Insured shall give all such assistance as the Company may require

6 The Insured shall at the Company's request and expense do and concur in doing and permit to be done all such acts and things as may be necessary or reasonably required by the Company for the purpose of enforcing any rights and remedies or of obtaining relief or indemnity from other parties to which the Company shall be or would become entitled or subrogated upon the Company paying for or making good any loss under this Policy whether such acts and things shall be or become necessary or required before or after the Company indemnifies the Insured

#### 7 Not applicable to Money and Personal Injury (Robbery) Insurance

If at the time of any claim there is any other insurance covering the Insured's interest in the property lost destroyed or damaged or the same legal liability the Company's liability under this Policy shall be limited to its rateable proportion of such claim

If any such other insurance is subject to any condition of average this Policy if not already subject to any condition of average shall be subject to average in like manner

If any other insurance effected by or on behalf of the Insured is expressed to cover any of the property hereby insured but is subject to any provision whereby it is excluded from ranking concurrently with this Policy either in whole or in part or from contributing rateably to the loss destruction or damage the Company's liability hereunder shall be limited to such proportion of the loss destruction or damage as the sum hereby insured bears to the value of the property

# 8 Not applicable to Liability Personal Injury (Robbery) and Legal Expenses Insurance

If any difference shall arise as to the amount to be paid under this Policy (liability being otherwise admitted) such difference shall be referred to an arbitrator to be appointed by the parties in accordance with the statutory provisions in that behalf for the time being in force Where any difference is by this condition to be referred to arbitration the making of an award shall be a condition precedent to any right of action against the Company

# 9 Application only to Glass Breakage Damage to Neon and Illuminated Signs Electric Light Fitments and Sanitary Earthenware Insurance

Notwithstanding Claims Condition (2A) of this Policy in the event of any breakage loss or damage the Insured shall give immediate telephone notice to the Company If such breakage relates to stained glass the Company shall only be liable for the cost of repairing the broken glass by stained glass artists of recognised repute and standing and shall not pay any loss arising from alleged inferior artistic merit

# 10 Applicable only to Liability Insurance

Every letter claim writ summons and process in connection with the event shall be forwarded to the Company immediately on receipt The Insured shall also give the Company written notice immediately the Insured has knowledge of any prosecution or inquest in connection with any occurrence which may give rise to liability under this Policy

# 11 Applicable only to Personal Injury (Robbery) Insurance

All certificates information and evidence required by the Company shall be furnished free of expense to and in the form prescribed by the Company The Insured Person shall as often as required submit to medical examination on behalf of and at the Company's expense in connection with any claim The Insured's or the Insured's personal representative's receipt shall discharge the Company The Insured Person or the Insured Person's personal representative shall have no right to claim from or sue the Company If the Insured comprises more than one party having an interest in the Insured Person the Benefit shall represent the total amount payable in respect of that Insured Person for all interests covered by this insurance

# **Complaints Procedure and Regulatory Information**

# **How to Complain**

We are dedicated to providing a high quality service and We want to ensure that We maintain this at all times. However, in the event that You wish to make a formal complaint You should contact Us using one of the following options:

- In writing (letter or email) to the address shown below; or
- By telephone to the telephone number shown below.

#### Contact details:

Choice Insurance Agency Limited Compliance Officer Suite 3, 4a Southchurch Road, Southend-on-Sea, Essex, SS1 2NE

Email: Complaints@ChoiceInsuranceAgency.Com

Telephone: 01702 411200

We will review Your complaint and will investigate the circumstances regarding Your complaint and write to You within fourteen (14) calendar days with a response.

If You are not satisfied with the response, or have not received a response from Us within fourteen (14) calendar days, You are entitled to refer the matter to Lloyd's. Lloyd's will then conduct a full investigation of Your complaint and provide You with a written final response. If You wish to ask Lloyd's to investigate Your complaint You may do so by contacting:

#### Contact details - Lloyd's:

Complaints Lloyd's Fidentia House Walter Burke Way Chatham Maritime Chatham Kent ME4 4RN

Email: complaints@lloyds.com
Tel: +44 (0) 20 7327 5693
Fax: +44 (0) 20 7327 5225
Web: www.lloyds.com/complaints

Details of Lloyd's complaints procedures are set out in a leaflet "HOW WE WILL HANDLE YOUR COMPLAINT" available at www.lloyds.com/complaints and are also available from the above address.

If You remain dissatisfied after Lloyd's has considered Your complaint You may have the right to refer Your complaint to the Financial Ombudsman Service.

#### Contact details - Financial Ombudsmen Service:

Financial Ombudsman Service Exchange Tower Harbour Exchange Square London E14 9SR

Email: complaint.info@financial-ombudsman.org.uk
Tel: For UK callers: 0800 023 4567 (free phone),
or 0300 123 9123 (but charges apply)

Tel: For callers from abroad: +44 (0) 20 7964 0500 (charges apply)

Web: www.financial-ombudsman.org.uk

Please remember that You will have to refer Your complaint to the Financial Ombudsman Service within 6 months of receiving Lloyd's final response.

Making a complaint will not affect Your legal rights. If You appoint someone to act on Your behalf or if You ask someone else to act on Your behalf You should provide Us with written authority to allow Us to deal with them. We will not pay their costs.

# **Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS)**

The Insurer is covered by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS). You may be entitled to compensation from the FSCS if in the unlikely event that We are unable to meet Our obligations under this Policy. If You were entitled to compensation under the FSCS, the level of compensation payable would depend on the nature of the insurance granted under this Policy.

Further information about the FSCS is available from:

#### Contact details:

Financial Services Compensation Scheme PO Box 300 Mitcheldean GL17 1DY

Email: enquiries@fscs.org.uk

Tel: For UK callers: 0800 678 1100 (free phone)
Tel: For callers from abroad: +44 (0) 20 7741 4100

Web: www.fscs.org.uk

# **Exclusions Applicable to all Sections**

#### A Radioactive Contamination and Explosive Nuclear Assemblies Exclusion

This Policy does not cover

- (a) loss or destruction of or damage to any property whatsoever or any loss or expense whatsoever resulting or arising therefrom or any consequential loss
- (b) any legal liability of whatsoever nature

directly or indirectly caused by or contributed to by or arising from

- (i) ionising radiations or contamination by radioactivity from any nuclear fuel or from any nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel
- (ii) the radioactive, toxic, explosive or other hazardous properties of any explosive nuclear assembly or nuclear component thereof.

#### **B** Communicable Disease Exclusion

This Policy does not cover actual or alleged loss, liability, damage, compensation, injury, sickness, disease, death, medical payment, defence cost, cost, expense or any other amount, directly or indirectly and regardless of any other cause contributing concurrently or in any sequence, originating from, caused by, arising out of, contributed to by, resulting from, or otherwise in connection with a Communicable Disease or the fear or threat (whether actual or perceived) of a Communicable Disease.

For the purposes of this endorsement, loss, liability, damage, compensation, injury, sickness, disease, death, medical payment, defence cost, cost, expense or any other amount, includes, but is not limited to, any cost to clean-up, detoxify, remove, monitor or test for a Communicable Disease.

As used herein, a Communicable Disease means any disease which can be transmitted by means of any substance or agent from any organism to another organism where:

- A) the substance or agent includes, but is not limited to, a virus, bacterium, parasite or other organism or any variation thereof, whether deemed living or not, and
- B) the method of transmission, whether direct or indirect, includes but is not limited to, airborne transmission, bodily fluid transmission, transmission from or to any surface or object, solid, liquid or gas or between organisms, and
- C) the disease, substance or agent can cause or threaten bodily injury, illness, emotional distress, damage to human health, human welfare or property damage.

#### **C** Cyber Exclusion

This Policy does not cover legal liability arising from:

- A) any computer virus, malicious code or other malware which causes the malfunction of or prevents access by You or any external party to any computer system used in connection with Your Business;
- B) the onward transmission of any computer virus or other malware to any external party who uses Your website or has authorised connection to Your computer system;
- C) the denial of access or use by You or any authorised party to Your computer system;
- D) the content of Your website, email, intranet or extranet, including alterations or additions made by a hacker or any unauthorised external party;
- E) the failure of electronic, electromechanical data processing or electronically controlled equipment or electronic data, to correctly recognise any given date, or to process data, or to operate properly due to failure to recognise any given date due to inherent defect or computer virus, malicious code or other malware;
- F) actual or alleged infringement of any intellectual property rights, including any copyright, trademark, passing off or linking to or framing of another page;
- G) defamation, libel, slander or malicious falsehood;
- H) any breach, violation or infringement of any right to privacy, consumer data protection law, or other legal protection for personal data;

Ascot Office Policy Wording V1 Page 8 of 52

I) the unauthorised collection or misuse of any data concerning any customer or potential customer which is either confidential or subject to statutory restrictions on its use and which You obtained through the internet or extranet or website and hold in Your possession.

#### **D** War and Civil War Exclusion

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein this Policy does not cover Loss or Damage directly or indirectly occasioned by, happening through or in consequence of war, invasion, acts of foreign enemies, hostilities (whether war be declared or not), civil war, rebellion, revolution, insurrection, military or usurped power or confiscation or nationalisation or requisition or destruction of or damage to property by or under the order of any government or public or local authority.

#### E Terrorism Exclusion

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary within this insurance or any endorsement thereto it is agreed that this insurance excludes loss, damage, cost or expense of whatsoever nature directly or indirectly caused by, resulting from or in connection with any act of terrorism regardless of any other cause or event contributing concurrently or in any other sequence to the loss.

For the purpose of this exclusion an act of terrorism means an act, including but not limited to the use of force or violence and/or the threat thereof, of any person or group(s) of persons, whether acting alone or on behalf of or in connection with any organisation(s) or government(s), committed for political, religious, ideological or similar purposes including the intention to influence any government and/or to put the public, or any section of the public, in fear.

This endorsement also excludes loss, damage, cost or expense of whatsoever nature directly or indirectly caused by, resulting from or in connection with any action taken in controlling, preventing, suppressing or in any way relating to any act of terrorism.

If the Underwriters allege that by reason of this exclusion, any loss, damage, cost or expense is not covered by this insurance the burden of proving the contrary shall be upon the Assured.

In the event any portion of this endorsement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder shall remain in full force and effect.

# **Property Damage Insurance**

If any of the Property Insured described in the Schedule suffers Damage at the Premises by any of the Covers insured the Company will in accordance with the provisions of the insurance pay to the Insured the amount of loss or at its option reinstate or replace such property provided that the Company's liability in any one Period of Insurance shall not exceed in the whole the total sum insured or in respect of any item its sum insured or any other stated limit of liability For the purpose of this insurance Damage shall mean loss destruction or damage

#### **Covers**

The following are the Covers insured except as otherwise stated in the Schedule

- 1 A Fire excluding Damage
  - 1) by explosion resulting from fire
  - 2) to property caused by its undergoing any process involving the application of heat
  - B **Explosion** excluding Damage
    - 1) caused by the bursting of any boiler economiser or other vessel machine or apparatus belonging to or under the control of the Insured in which internal pressure is due to steam only
    - 2) to any vessel machine or apparatus or its contents resulting from the explosion thereof but this shall not exclude Damage caused by explosion of
    - any boiler
    - gas
    - used for domestic purposes only

# **C Lightning**

- D Aircraft or other aerial devices or articles dropped therefrom
- 2 Earthquake excluding Damage caused by fire
- 3 Riot civil commotion strikers locked-out workers or persons taking part in labour disturbances or malicious persons excluding Damage
  - 1) arising from confiscation requisition or destruction by order of the government or any public authority
  - 2) arising from cessation of work
  - 3) A) in the course of theft or attempted theft
    - B) in respect of any building which is empty or not in use directly caused by malicious persons not acting on behalf of or in connection with any political organisation
- 4 Storm or flood excluding Damage
  - 1) attributable solely to change in the water table level
  - 2) caused by frost subsidence ground heave or landslip
  - 3) to fences gates and moveable property in the open
- 5 Escape of water from any tank apparatus or pipe excluding Damage
  - 1) by water discharged or leaking from an automatic sprinkler installation
  - 2) in respect of any building which is empty or not in use
- 6 Impact by any road vehicle (including any fork lift truck or other industrial vehicle) or animal
- 7 Accidental escape of water from any automatic sprinkler installation excluding Damage
  - 1) by freezing in any building which is empty or not in use
  - 2) by heat caused by fire
- 8 Theft (which is deemed to include attempted theft) excluding Damage
  - 1) from any part of the building not occupied by the Insured for the purpose of the Business
  - 2) from the open or from any outbuilding
  - 3) expedited or in any way brought about by the Insured or any director partner or employee of the Insured
  - 4) due to a person obtaining any property by deception
  - 5) to lead forming part of the exterior of the Premises
  - 6) to Money and securities of any description
  - 7) to Glass if more specifically insured
  - 8) due to disappearance unexplained or inventory shortage

#### 9 Subsidence ground heave or landslip excluding Damage

- 1) arising from the settlement or movement of made-up ground or by coastal or river erosion
- 2) occurring as a result of the construction demolition structural alteration or structural repair of any property at the Premises
- 3) arising from normal settlement or bedding down of new structures
- 4) commencing prior to the granting of cover under this insurance

## 10 Any other accident excluding Damage

- 1) by any of
  - A) the Covers
  - B) the causes expressly excluded from the Covers specified in paragraphs 1-9 or 11 (whether or not insured)
- 2) to any property caused by
  - A) its own faulty or defective design or materials
  - B) inherent vice latent defect gradual deterioration wear and tear
  - C) faulty or defective workmanship operational error or omission on the part of the Insured or any of their employees but this shall not exclude subsequent Damage which itself results from a cause not otherwise excluded
- 3) caused by
  - A) corrosion rust wet or dry rot shrinkage evaporation loss of weight dampness dryness marring scratching vermin or insects
  - B) change in temperature colour flavour texture or finish
  - C) joint leakage failure of welds cracking fracturing collapse or overheating of boilers
  - economisers superheaters pressure vessels or any range of steam and feed piping in connection therewith
  - D) mechanical or electrical breakdown or derangement in respect of the particular machine apparatus or equipment in which the breakdown or derangement originates

but this shall not exclude

- 1) such Damage which itself results from other Damage and is not otherwise excluded
- 2) subsequent Damage which itself results from a cause not otherwise excluded
- 4) caused by
  - A) pollution or contamination
  - B) acts of fraud or dishonesty
  - C) disappearance unexplained or inventory shortage misfiling or misplacing of information
- 5) to
  - A) a building or structure caused by its own collapse or cracking
  - B) moveable property in the open fences and gates by wind rain hail sleet snow flood or dust
  - C) property resulting from its undergoing any process of production packing treatment testing commissioning servicing or repair
- 6) to
  - A) Money and securities of any description
  - B) vehicles licensed for road use (including accessories thereon) caravans trailers railway locomotives rolling stock watercraft or aircraft
  - C) property or structures in course of construction or erection and materials or supplies in connection with all such property in course of construction or erection

## 11 A Accidental breakage of fixed Glass by fracture extending through its entire thickness

- B Damage to neon and illuminated signs and electric light fitments
- C Accidental breakage of fixed Sanitary Earthenware
- D Damage by impact or falling glass to
  - 1) the framework and fittings of the ground floor frontage
  - 2) goods on display in windows

including Glass and Sanitary Earthenware in any part of the Buildings at the Premises otherwise occupied by the Insured as a private dwelling provided that such Glass and Sanitary Earthenware are not otherwise insured excluding

- 1) breakage or Damage
- A) consequent upon alterations to the framework or position of any Glass or neon and illuminated signs and electric light fitments or Sanitary Earthenware
- B) consequent upon settlement or expansion or contraction of frames or fittings in buildings under construction and during a period of six months after the date of completion of the buildings
- C) while the Premises are empty or not in use
- D) existing prior to the commencement of this insurance and not subsequently replaced
- E) in respect of neon and illuminated signs and electric light fitments
- 1) occasioned by or traceable to wear and tear or gradual deterioration mechanical or electrical breakdown or removal from the fixed position other than by theft or attempt thereat
- 2) of bulbs or tubes unless consequent upon Damage to signs or fitments
- 2) any consequence of fire or explosion if more specifically insured

Provided that the liability of the Company in respect of

- 1) Damage by impact or falling glass to the framework and fittings of the ground floor frontage or goods on display in windows shall not exceed £500 any one loss
- 2) breakage or Damage to
  - A) Glass which is bent tinted stained or fired or incorporated in multiple glazed units (other than double glazing units)
  - B) decoration or protective film or alarm foil on glass shall not exceed £1,000 in any one Period of Insurance unless to comply with the quality recommended in the British Standard Code of Practice BS 6262: 1982

#### **Insured's Contribution**

This insurance does not cover the Insured's Contribution as specified in the Schedule being the first part of each and every loss to be borne by the Insured at each separate premises as ascertained after the application of all terms and conditions of the insurance including the Underinsurance Provision.

#### **Exclusions**

This insurance does not cover

#### A Marine Policies

Damage to property which at the time of the happening of the Damage is insured by or would but for the existence of this insurance be insured by any marine policy or policies except in respect of any excess beyond the amount which would have been payable under the marine policy or policies had this insurance not been effected

#### **B** Sonic Bangs

Damage caused by pressure waves caused by aircraft or other aerial devices travelling at sonic or supersonic speeds

#### **C** Pollution and Contamination

Damage caused by pollution or contamination except (unless otherwise excluded) destruction of or damage to the Property Insured caused by

- 1) pollution or contamination which itself results from any Cover insured (other than Cover 10)
- 2) any Cover insured (other than Cover 10) which itself results from pollution or contamination

#### **D** Date Recognition Exclusion

Unless Damage results from any Covers insured except 10 and 11 this insurance does not cover loss resulting from direct or indirect Damage caused by any Failure of a System resulting in Damage (whether direct or indirect) to any such System or to any other Property Insured

For the purposes of this Exclusion -

Failure of a System means the failure or inability of a System (whether or not owned by the Insured)

- 1) correctly to recognise or utilise any data concerning a date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date) as being such calendar date as the data is intended to represent
- 2) to operate as a result of any command programmed into the System utilising any date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date) System includes computers other computing and electronic and mechanical equipment linked to a computer hardware software programs data electronic data processing equipment Microchips and anything which relies on a Microchip for any part of its operation

Microchip includes integrated circuits and microcontrollers

# **Definitions of Property Property Insured**

Buildings

- General Contents

- Other property or interests

at the premises including within the open yards forming part of the Premises (subject to any specific exclusions)

all as defined below or more fully described in the Schedule and all being the property of the Insured or for which they are responsible but excluding

- property which is more specifically insured
- unless specifically notified to and accepted by the Company as insured
  - A) land roads pavements piers jetties bridges culverts or excavations
  - B) livestock growing crops or trees

#### **Buildings**

- buildings (being built mainly of brick stone concrete or other non-combustible materials unless otherwise stated in the Schedule or Statement of Fact)
- landlord's fixtures and fittings in and on the buildings
- small outside buildings extensions annexes gangways
- walls gates and fences
- services which shall mean

telephone gas and water mains electrical instruments meters piping cabling and the like and the accessories thereon extending from the buildings to the perimeter of the Premises or to the public mains (including those underground)

#### **Tenant's Improvements**

all tenant's improvements alterations additions and decorations belonging to the Insured or for which they are responsible

#### **General Contents**

- machinery plant fixtures fittings and other trade equipment
- all Office Machines and other contents excluding

Computer and Ancillary Equipment

Computer Systems Records

Money and securities of any description

Transparencies Deeds and Documents

- patterns models moulds plans and designs
- in so far as they are not otherwise insured

directors' partners' and employees' personal effects including clothing pedal cycles tools instruments and the like for an amount not exceeding £500 per person

but any cover granted under this insurance for Damage by Theft shall not apply to

personal effects partly or wholly of precious metal jewellery watches furs contact lenses portable electronic entertainment equipment cameras Money and securities of any description

- wines spirits cigarettes and tobacco held for entertainment purposes
- promotional materials leaflets and the like
- travel agents brochures
- to the extent that they are not otherwise insured motor vehicles motor chassis and their contents
- satellite dishes
- curios pictures and other works of art (including any limited edition reproductions thereof) stamp collections articles of precious metal jewellery or furs up to a limit of £1,000 in all
- Glass Sanitary Earthenware neon and illuminated signs and electric light fitments

## **Deeds and Documents**

 deeds wills agreements plans manuscripts business books written or printed books and documents of any nature letters certificates

microfilm and microfiche but excluding negotiable securities Money and stamps

## **Transparencies**

- transparencies film negatives and video tapes

#### Money

 cash bank notes currency notes cheques bankers' drafts postal orders money orders current postage stamps and revenue stamps

National Insurance stamps National Savings stamps and certificates holiday savings stamps luncheon vouchers credit company sales vouchers VAT purchase invoices Premium Bonds bills of exchange giro cheques and drafts gift tokens trading stamps unused units of franking machines consumer redemption vouchers and credit cards

#### Glass

normal flat annealed glass

toughened and laminated glass

- mirrors

- bent tinted stained or fired glass
- decoration or protective film or alarm foil on glass

#### **Sanitary Earthenware**

- sanitary ware of every description

# **Computer Equipment**

 all computer equipment including interconnecting wiring fixed disks and telecommunications equipment used for the storage and communication of electronically processed data owned by or leased hired or rented to the Insured

including lettering

thereon

#### **Ancillary Equipment**

 Ancillary Equipment solely for use with the Computer Equipment comprising air conditioning generating voltage regulating temperature and humidity recording electronic access and heat and smoke detection equipment fire extinguishing gas bottles and pipework and computer room partitioning owned by or leased hired or rented to the Insured

# **Computer Systems Records**

 all current and backup computer records (excluding fixed disks and paper records of any description) incorporating stored programs and/or information stored thereon

#### **Office Machines**

 typewriters duplicators photocopying machines calculators accounting machines telephone installations public address systems dictating equipment postal and franking machines and similar office equipment belonging to the Insured or for which they are responsible

#### **Designation of Property**

Where necessary the item heading under which any property is insured shall be determined by the designation under which such property appears in the Insured's books

# **The Insurance Provided**

**In respect of Buildings Tenant's Improvements and General Contents** (other than motor vehicles directors' partners' and employees' personal effects) the Company will pay -

# A the cost of reinstatement being

- where the property is destroyed the cost of rebuilding or in the case of General Contents the cost of its replacement by similar property
- where the property is damaged the cost of repairing or restoring the damaged portions to a condition substantially the same as but not better or more extensive than its condition when new
- B the cost of complying with Public Authorities' requirements being such additional cost of reinstatement of the property as may be

incurred with the Company's consent in complying with Building Regulations or local authority or other statutory requirements first imposed upon the Insured following the Damage provided that the reinstatement is completed within twelve months of the occurrence of the Damage or within such further time as the Company may in writing allow

## C the cost of removing debris being

the cost incurred with the Company's consent in removing debris dismantling demolishing shoring up and propping portions of the property but excluding any costs or expenses

- 1) incurred in removing debris except from the site of such property damaged and the area immediately adjacent to such site
- 2) arising from pollution or contamination of property not insured by this policy

## D the cost of professional fees being

those necessarily incurred in the reinstatement of the property but not for preparing any claims

The undernoted provisions apply

#### 1 Public Authorities' Requirements

The Company shall not be liable in respect of cost B for

- requirements relating to undamaged property or undamaged portions of property other than foundations (unless foundations are specifically excluded from the insurance)
- any rate tax duty development or other charge or assessment which may arise out of capital appreciation as a result of complying with any of the regulations or requirements referred to

## 2 Partial Damage

Where Damage occurs to only part of the property the Company's liability shall not exceed the amount which the Company would have been liable to pay had the property been wholly destroyed

#### **3 Reinstatement on Another Site**

The work of reinstatement may be carried out wholly or partially upon another site and in any manner suitable to the requirements of the Insured provided that it does not increase the Company's liability

#### 4 Insurable Amount

For the purpose of the Underinsurance Provision the Insurable Amount shall be the Day One Reinstatement Value Day One Reinstatement Value shall mean

the total of the insured costs A B C and D in reinstating the Property Insured to a condition substantially the same as when new at the level of costs applying at the commencement of the Period of Insurance

#### 5 Alternative Basis of Settlement

The Company's liability shall be limited to the Alternative Basis of Settlement (as defined below)

A) until the cost of reinstatement has actually been incurred

- B) if the work of reinstatement is not carried out as quickly as is reasonably practicable
- C) if at the time of its Damage the property is covered by any other insurance effected by or on

behalf of the Insured and such other insurance is not on the identical basis of reinstatement defined in cost A

D) if in the Schedule it is stated that the Alternative Basis of Settlement applies Under the Alternative Basis of Settlement the Company will pay the value of the property at the time of its destruction or the amount of the damage including the cost of

- complying with Public Authorities' requirements
- removing debris
- professional fees

as defined in costs B C and D above and subject to the provisions and exceptions applying to those costs For the purpose of the Underinsurance Provision the Insurable Amount shall be the total of the value at the time of the Damage of the Property Insured by the item and the additional costs B C and D

#### **In respect of Deeds Documents and Transparencies**

the Company will pay -

- A the value of the materials as stationery
- B the clerical labour expended in writing up or reproducing such property
- C the costs necessarily and reasonably incurred in connection with the reproduction of any information to be recorded but excluding the value to the Insured of the information
- D the cost incurred with the Company's consent in removing debris dismantling demolishing shoring up and propping portions of the property but excluding any costs or expenses
  - 1) incurred in removing debris except from the site of such property damaged and the area immediately adjacent to such site
  - 2) arising from pollution or contamination of property not insured by this policy

The undernoted provisions apply

#### 1 Insurable Amount

For the purpose of the Underinsurance Provision the Insurable Amount shall be the value at the time of Damage of the Property insured by the item

## 2 Limit of Liability

No Transparency will be deemed to be of greater value than £1,000

In respect of Rent of Buildings which suffer Damage the Company will pay -

- A) if the loss relates to rent receivable by the Insured
  - the actual reduction in rent received solely in consequence of the Damage
- B) if the loss relates to rent payable by the Insured
  - the amount of rent which continues to be payable by the Insured in respect of the Building or portions of the Building whilst unfit for occupation in consequence of the Damage

but the Company's liability shall be limited to the loss suffered within the period of rent insured (as specified in the Schedule) which commences from the date of the Damage

The undernoted provision applies

#### **Insurable Amount**

For the purpose of the Underinsurance Provision the Insurable Amount shall be the annual rent receivable (or in the case of B) above the annual rent payable) at the commencement of the Period of Insurance such amount to be proportionately increased to correspond with the period of rent insured where that period exceeds twelve months

In respect of insured property not specifically provided for the Company will pay -

- A the value of the property at the time of its destruction or the amount of the damage
- B the cost incurred with the Company's consent in removing debris dismantling demolishing shoring up and propping portions of the property but excluding any costs or expenses
  - 1) incurred in removing debris except from the site of such property damaged and the area immediately adjacent to such site
  - 2) arising from pollution or contamination of property not insured by this policy

The undernoted provision applies

#### **Insurable Amount**

For the purpose of the Underinsurance Provision the Insurable Amount shall be the value at the time of Damage of the Property insured by the item

# **General Provisions applicable to all items**

#### **Underinsurance**

If at the time of the Damage the Declared Value by any item or where a Declared Value is not shown the sum insured by any item is less than the Insurable Amount the amount otherwise payable shall be proportionately reduced

#### Declared Value shall mean

the base value shown in brackets below the sum insured such value excluding any provision for inflation but if the loss is settled under the Alternative Basis of Settlement the Declared Value shall be 115% of the base value shown or if no base value is shown it shall be deemed to be the sum insured

#### **Reinstatement by the Company**

The Company may at its own option reinstate or replace any property destroyed or damaged without being bound to reinstate exactly or completely but only as circumstances permit and in reasonably sufficient manner The Insured shall at their own expense produce and provide the Company with all such plans documents books and information as the Company may reasonably require

# **Extinguishment Expenses**

The Company will pay the reasonable costs incurred by the Insured in refilling fire extinguishing appliances and replacing used sprinkler heads solely in consequence of insured Damage to the Property Insured

# **Theft Cover Extension**

Any cover granted under this insurance in respect of Theft includes

- A) the cost of repairing Damage to the Buildings (whether or not the Buildings are insured hereunder) if the Insured is responsible for the repairs and the Damage is not otherwise insured
- B) the reasonable expenses (not exceeding £1,000) incurred in necessarily replacing locks to the Buildings or safes or strongrooms therein consequent upon Theft (as insured) of such keys from the Buildings or from the residence of any of the authorised keyholding directors partners or employees of the Insured

# **Omissions Extension**

In the event of any claim being made against the Insured in respect of any alleged omission or neglect to send any Deeds or Documents by recorded delivery or registered post the company will indemnify the insured against liability at law for damages and claimants' costs and expenses in respect of such claim up to £10,000 in total together with all costs and expenses incurred with the Company's written consent

# **Loss of Metered Water**

The Company will pay the addition metered water charges incurred by the Insured as a result of Damage caused by any of the Covers insured under Property Damage Insurance except those in respect of any loss which has not been discovered and remedial action taken within 30 days of the occurrence of the Damage

The amount payable as indemnity shall be ascertained by comparing the charge made by the water suppliers on their account for the period during which the loss occurred with the normal charge adjusted for any relevant factors affecting the Insured's liability for metered water charges during such period subject to the Company's liability under this extension not exceeding £2,500 any one loss

#### Memoranda

#### **Property Removed from the Premises**

Subject to all the provisions and exclusions the cover granted by this insurance is extended to apply to the undernoted Property Insured whilst removed from the Premises as indicated below except that

- 1) the insurance applies only in so far as the property is not otherwise insured
- 2) any cover granted in respect of Damage by Theft shall not apply in respect of theft from any unattended vehicle unless the property is contained in the locked boot or glove compartment and all points of access to the vehicle are locked or the vehicle is stolen at the same time
- 3) this extension applies only to Damage occurring anywhere in Europe except in respect of Specified Equipment when the extension applies worldwide
- 4) the Company's liability for any one loss shall not exceed the limit stated

Property and location  A Deeds Documents and Transparencies at any location and whilst in transit	Limit of liability for any one loss £10,000 any one package
B Specified Equipment at any location and whilst in transit	The sum insured stated in the Schedule
C Other property (excluding property described above vehicles licensed for road use clothing and	15% of the relative sum insured but in no case exceeding £250,000

above vehicles licensed for road use clothing and personal effects curios and other works of art stamp collections articles of precious metal jewellery and furs) whilst temporarily removed from the Premises or in transit

# **Buildings Tenant's Improvements and General Contents Alterations and Additions**

If during the Period of Insurance -

- alterations or additions are made to any Buildings insured or
- Buildings Tenant's Improvements or General Contents are acquired or constructed at any Premises covered by this insurance or elsewhere in Great Britain Northern Ireland the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man and such additional property is not otherwise insured it will be held covered under the relative terms of this insurance from the time from which the Insured became responsible for it until the next renewal of the insurance at which date specific insurance shall be effected The sum insured (and Declared Value) by each item shall be deemed to be increased for that period only by the value of the additional property insured under the item but by not more than 10% and subject to the Company's liability not exceeding £500,000 in respect of additional property at any one Premises All the provisions and conditions of this insurance (including the Alteration Condition) apply to this extension except as expressly varied

#### **Automatic Reinstatement after a loss**

In the absence of written notice by the Insured or the Company to the contrary within 30 days of the occurrence of any Damage the Company's liability shall not be reduced by the amount of any loss and the Insured shall pay the appropriate additional premium for such automatic reinstatement of cover provided that in respect of Damage by Theft (if insured) the automatic reinstatement shall apply on the first occasion only in each Period of Insurance

# **Index Linking**

The Company will adjust the sum insured (and the Declared Value where appropriate) by each item except Rent in line with suitable indices of costs and the premium for renewal will be based on the adjusted amounts

# **Transfer of Interest**

If at the time of any insured Damage to any Building insured the Insured shall have contracted to sell their interest in the Building and the purchase is subsequently completed the purchaser shall be entitled on completion of the purchase to the benefit of this insurance in respect of such Damage if and so far as the property is not otherwise insured by the purchaser or on the purchaser's behalf against such Damage without prejudice to the rights and liabilities of the Insured or the Company under this insurance up to the date of completion

# **Risk Protections**

## A Automatic Sprinkler and Fire Alarm Installations

(Applicable if a reduced premium rate is allowed on account of such an installation or if the insurance covers Damage by the accidental escape of water from a sprinkler installation)

The Insured shall

- 1) take all reasonable steps to
- A) prevent frost and other damage to the installations and in so far as it is their responsibility
- B) maintain the installations (including the automatic external alarm signal) in efficient working order

Ascot Office Policy Wording V1 Page 17 of 52

- C) maintain ready access to the water supply control facilities
- 2) in the event that changes repairs or alterations to the installations are proposed notify the Company in writing and obtain its prior agreement in writing
- 3) allow the Company access to the Premises at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the installations
- 4) carry out the routine tests laid down by the Company and remedy promptly any defect revealed by a test

In the event that alterations or repairs become necessary to the automatic sprinkler installation the Company may at its option suspend any cover which is granted against Damage by the accidental escape of water from the installation until the alterations or repairs have been carried out and approved by the Company Notice of any such action will be given by the Company in writing

# **B** Fire Extinguishing Appliances

It is a condition precedent to the Company's liability for Damage that the Insured shall maintain all fire extinguishing appliances in efficient working order

## **C Security Precautions**

(Applicable to any cover granted in respect of Damage by Theft)

It is a condition precedent to the Company's liability for loss or damage that

- A) in respect of any Intruder Alarm System installed at the Premises
  - 1) the Intruder Alarm System is maintained in full and effective working order under a contract to provide both corrective and preventive maintenance with the installer or such other contractor agreed by the Company in writing
  - 2) the Business Premises are not left unattended
    - A) unless the Intruder Alarm System is tested and set in its entirety and is together with the means of communication used to transmit signals in full and effective operation and where the equipment permits any Alarm Receiving Centre to which the Intruder Alarm System is connected has acknowledged the setting signal
    - B) if police response to alarm calls has been withdrawn without the written agreement of the Company
  - 3) where the Intruder Alarm System is required or approved by the Company as a condition of cover it is installed in accordance with a specification agreed in writing by the Company
  - 4) no alteration to or substitution of
    - A) any part of the Intruder Alarm System
    - B) the procedures agreed by the Insured for police or any other response to any activation of or other warning signal pertaining to the Intruder Alarm System
  - C) the maintenance contract shall be made without the written agreement of the Company
  - 5) no structural alteration of or changes in layout to the Premises that could affect operation of the Intruder Alarm System shall be made without the written agreement of the Company
  - 6) the Insured shall maintain secrecy of codes for operation of the Intruder Alarm System and shall not leave details of such codes at the Business Premises when the Business Premises are unattended
  - 7) the Insured shall appoint at least two Keyholders and shall record details of the Keyholders with the police and any Alarm Receiving Centre to which the Intruder Alarm System signals
  - 8) any change of Keyholder details shall be notified immediately to the police and any Alarm Receiving Centre to which the Intruder Alarm System signals
  - 9) in the event of notification of any activation of the Intruder Alarm System or interruption of the means of communication during any period that the system is set a Keyholder shall attend and allow access to the Business Premises without delay
  - 10) in the event that the Insured receives any notification
    - A) from the police alarm installer/maintenance contractor or Alarm Receiving Centre that response to alarm signals or line interruptions from the Intruder Alarm System may be withdrawn or the level of response reduced or delayed
  - B) from a Local Authority or Magistrate imposing any requirement for abatement of nuisance
  - C) that the Intruder Alarm System cannot be returned to or maintained in full working order the Insured shall advise the Company as soon as possible and in any event not later than 10am on the Company's next working day and comply with any subsequent requirements stipulated by the Company
- B) whenever the Business Premises are left unattended

Ascot Office Policy Wording V1 Page 18 of 52

- 1) all locks bolts and other protective devices are in full and effective operation
- 2) all keys (including those relating to any part of the Intruder Alarm System) are removed from the Business Premises

### **Interpretations**

Intruder Alarm System includes all lines and equipment used to transmit the signals to and from the Premises

Keyholder shall mean any person or keyholding company authorised by the Insured who is available at all times when the Intruder Alarm System is set to accept notification of faults or alarm signals or messages relating to the Intruder Alarm System

Business Premises shall mean that part of the Premises occupied by the Insured for the purpose of the Business described in the Schedule

# D The Minimum Standard of Security (Applicable to any cover granted in respect of Damage by theft)

It is a condition precedent to the Company's liability for Damage that the Insured shall have implemented the following security measures within 8 weeks of commencement of theft cover

- A) The Final Exit Door of the Premises be fitted with either
  - 1) for timber or steel framed doors a mortice deadlock which has 5 or more levers and/or conforms to BS3621 : 1980 specification for thief resistant locks and matching boxed striking plate Or
  - 2) for aluminium or UPVC framed doors a cylinder operated mortice deadlock or a deadlocking multi-point locking system
- B) All other external doors and all internal doors giving access to any part of the buildings not occupied by the Insured for the purpose of the Business be fitted with either
  - 1) any of the locking arrangements as specified in A) 1) or 2) above in accordance with the construction of the door frame Or
  - 2) two key operated security bolts for doors one fitted approximately 30cm from the top of the door and the other 30cm from the bottom
- C) All ground floor and basement opening windows/skylights and other opening windows/skylights accessible from roofs decks balconies fire escapes canopies or down pipes are to be fitted with key-operated window locks This requirement does not apply to windows/skylights which are protected by solid steel bars grilles lockable gates expanded metal or weld-mesh provided agreement shall have been obtained from the Company and is stated on the Schedule

Any door or window officially designated a fire exit by the fire authority is excluded from these requirements.

- D) Each item of electronic equipment with an individual replacement value of £1,000 or greater must be
  - 1) permanently and prominently marked with the post code of the Premises and either the owner's name or company logo or
  - 2) securely anchored to the desk work station or to the structure of the building by a hold down device approved by the Company the keys to which have been removed from the Premises or contained in a securely locked safe the keys to which have been removed from the Premises

# **Business Interruption Insurance**

If Damage by any of the Covers insured occurs at the Premises

- A) to property used by the Insured for the purpose of the Business which causes interruption of or interference with the Insured's Business at the Premises
- B) which prevents the Insured from tracing or establishing customers' Outstanding Debit Balances in whole or in part due to them

the Company will pay to the Insured

1) in respect of A) the amount of loss resulting from the interruption or interference caused by the Damage in accordance with the provisions of the insurance

provided that payment has been made or liability admitted for the Damage under an insurance covering the interest of the Insured in the property

or

payment would have been made or liability admitted for the Damage but for the operation of a proviso in such insurance excluding liability for losses below a specified amount

2) in respect of B) the amount of loss resulting from the Damage in accordance with the provisions of the insurance

The Company's liability in any one Period of Insurance shall not exceed in the whole

- 1) in respect of A) the total sum insured or in respect of any item its sum insured or any other stated limit of liability
- 2) in respect of B) the sum of £50,000 or any other limit of liability stated in the Schedule

For the purpose of this insurance Damage shall mean loss destruction or damage

#### Covers

The following are the Covers insured except as otherwise stated in the Schedule

- 1 A Fire excluding Damage
  - 1) by explosion resulting from fire
  - 2) to property caused by its undergoing any process involving the application of heat

#### B **Explosion** excluding

- 1) Damage caused by the bursting of any vessel machine or apparatus belonging to or under the control of the Insured in which internal pressure is due to steam only
- 2) loss resulting from the Insured being deprived of the use of any vessel machine or apparatus or its contents as a result of the explosion thereof

but this shall not exclude explosion of

- any boiler used for domestic purposes only or of any other boiler or economiser on the Premises
- gas used for domestic purposes only

## **C** Lightning

- D Aircraft or other aerial devices or articles dropped therefrom
- 2 Earthquake excluding Damage caused by fire
- 3 Riot civil commotion strikers locked-out workers or persons taking part in labour disturbances or malicious persons excluding Damage
  - 1) arising from confiscation requisition or destruction by order of the government or any public authority
  - 2) arising from cessation of work
- 4 Storm or Flood excluding Damage
  - 1) attributable solely to change in the water table level
  - 2) caused by frost subsidence ground heave or landslip
  - 3) to fences gates and moveable property in the open
- 5 Escape of water from any tank apparatus or pipe excluding Damage
  - 1) by water discharged or leaking from an automatic sprinkler installation
  - 2) in respect of any building which is empty or not in use
- 6 Impact by any road vehicle (including any fork lift truck or other industrial vehicle) or animal

Ascot Office Policy Wording V1 Page 20 of 52

## 7 Accidental escape of water from any automatic sprinkler installation excluding Damage

- 1) by freezing in any building which is empty or not in use
- 2) by heat caused by fire

## 8 Theft (which shall be deemed to include attempted theft) excluding Damage

- 1) from any part of the building not occupied by the Insured for the purpose of the Business
- 2) from the open or from any outbuilding
- 3) expedited or in anyway brought about by the Insured or any director partner or employee of the Insured
- 4) due to a person obtaining any property by deception
- 5) to lead forming part of the exterior of the Premises
- 6) due to disappearance unexplained or inventory shortage

#### 9 Subsidence ground heave or landslip excluding Damage

- 1) arising from the settlement or movement of made-up ground or by coastal or river erosion
- 2) occurring as a result of the construction demolition structural alteration or structural repair of any property at the Premises
- 3) arising from normal settlement or bedding down of new structures
- 4) commencing prior to the granting of cover under this insurance

#### 10 Any other accident excluding Damage

- 1) by any of
  - A) the Covers
  - B) the causes expressly excluded from the Covers specified in paragraphs 1-9 (whether or not insured)
- 2) to any property caused by
  - A) its own faulty or defective design or materials
  - B) inherent vice latent defect gradual deterioration wear and tear
  - C) faulty or defective workmanship operational error or omission on the part of the Insured or any of their employees but this shall not exclude subsequent Damage which itself results from a cause not otherwise excluded
- 3) caused by
  - A) corrosion rust wet or dry rot shrinkage evaporation loss of weight dampness dryness marring scratching vermin or insects
  - B) change in temperature colour flavour texture or finish
  - C) joint leakage failure of welds cracking fracturing collapse or overheating of boilers economisers superheaters pressure vessels or any range of steam and feed piping in connection therewith
  - D) mechanical or electrical breakdown or derangement in respect of the particular machine apparatus or equipment in which the breakdown or derangement originates
  - E) the deliberate act of a supply undertaking in withholding the supply of water gas electricity fuel or telecommunication services

but this shall not exclude

- 1) such Damage which itself results from other Damage and is not otherwise excluded
- 2) subsequent Damage which itself results from a cause not otherwise excluded
- 4) caused by
  - A) pollution or contamination
  - B) acts of fraud or dishonesty
  - C) disappearance unexplained or inventory shortage misfiling or misplacing of information
- 5) to
  - A) a building or structure caused by its own collapse or cracking
  - B) moveable property in the open fences and gates by wind rain hail sleet snow flood or dust
  - C) property resulting from its undergoing any process of production packing treatment testing commissioning servicing or repair
- 6) to
  - A) property or structures in course of construction or erection and materials or supplies in connection with all such property or structures
  - B) vehicles licensed for road use (including accessories thereon) caravans trailers railway locomotives rolling stock watercraft or aircraft
  - C) land roads pavements piers jetties bridges culverts or excavations
  - D) livestock growing crops or trees

## Memorandum

#### **Index Linking**

The Company will adjust the estimate of Gross Revenue or Additional Cost of Working provided by the Insured and on which the premium for this Insurance is based in line with suitable indices of costs and the premium for renewal will be based on the adjusted amount.

#### **Exclusions**

The Company shall not be liable for loss resulting from

#### A Sonic Bangs

Damage caused by pressure waves caused by aircraft or other aerial devices travelling at sonic or supersonic speeds

## **B** Pollution and Contamination

Pollution or contamination but this shall not exclude loss resulting from Damage (not otherwise excluded) caused by 1) pollution or contamination which itself results from any Cover insured (other than Cover 10)

2) any Cover insured (other than Cover 10) which itself results from pollution or contamination

#### **C** Computer and Ancillary Equipment

Damage to Computer and Ancillary Equipment and Computer Systems Records

## **D** Date Recognition Exclusion

Unless interruption of or interference with the Business or Damage results from any Covers insured except 10 the Company shall not be liable for loss resulting from direct or indirect interruption of or interference with the Business or Damage caused by any Failure of a System resulting in Damage (whether direct or indirect) to any such System or to any other Property Insured

For the purposes of this Exclusion -

Failure of a System means the failure or inability of a System (whether or not owned by the Insured)

- 1) correctly to recognise or utilise any data concerning a date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date) as being such calendar date as the data is intended to represent
- 2) to operate as a result of any command programmed into the System utilising any date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date)

System includes computers other computing and electronic and mechanical equipment linked to a computer hardware software programs data electronic data processing equipment Microchips and anything which relies on a Microchip for any part of its operation

Microchip includes integrated circuits and microcontrollers

#### The Insurance Provided

#### **Item on Gross Revenue**

Subject to the provisions below the Company will pay as indemnity –

- A) In respect of Loss of Gross Revenue the amount by which the Gross Revenue during the Indemnity Period shall in consequence of the Damage fall short of the Standard Gross Revenue
- B) In respect of Increase in Cost of Working
  - the additional expenditure necessarily and reasonably incurred for the sole purpose of avoiding or diminishing the loss of Gross Revenue which but for that expenditure would have taken place during the Indemnity Period in consequence of the Damage but not exceeding the total of
  - the amount of the reduction in Gross Revenue thereby avoided plus
  - 5% of the sum insured by the item (but not more than £250,000)

The following are the provisions referred to above

## 1 Alternative Trading

If during the Indemnity Period work shall be done or services rendered elsewhere than at the Premises for the benefit of the Business either by the Insured or by others on the Insured's behalf the money paid or payable in respect of work or services shall be taken into account in arriving at the Gross Revenue during the Indemnity Period

## 2 Savings

If any of the charges or expenses of the Business payable out of Gross Revenue shall cease or reduce in consequence of the Damage the amount of such savings during the Indemnity Period shall be deducted from the amount payable

#### 3 Professional Accountants' Charges

The Company will pay the reasonable charges payable by the Insured to their professional accountants for producing information required by the Company under the terms of the Claims Conditions and for reporting that such information is in accordance with the Insured's accounts

#### 4 Underinsurance

If the sum insured is less than the Insurable Amount the amount payable shall be proportionately reduced

#### **Item on Additional Cost of Working**

Subject to the provision below the Company will pay as indemnity the additional expenditure necessarily and reasonably incurred in order to minimise any interruption or interference with the Business during the Indemnity Period in consequence of the Damage

The following is the provision referred to above

#### Professional Accountants' Charges

The Company will pay the reasonable charges payable by the Insured to their professional accountants for producing information required by the Company under the terms of the Claims Conditions and for reporting that such information is in accordance with the Insured's accounts

#### **Outstanding Debit Balances**

Subject to the provisions below the Company will pay as indemnity -

- A) the difference between
  - 1) the Outstanding Debit Balances
  - and
  - 2) the total of the amounts received or traced in connection with such balances
- B) the additional expenditure incurred with the consent of the Company in tracing and establishing customers' debit balances after the Damage

The following are the provisions referred to above

# 1 Professional Accountants' Charges

The Company will pay the reasonable charges payable by the Insured to their professional accountants for producing information required by the Company under the terms of the Claims Conditions and for reporting that such information is in accordance with the Insured's accounts

# 2 Limit of Liability

The Company's liability in any Period of Insurance shall not exceed in the whole the sum of £50,000 or any other limit of liability stated in the Schedule

3 Damage to Computer and Ancillary Equipment and Computer Systems Records Exclusion F does not apply to the insurance provided in respect of Outstanding Debit Balances

## **Definitions**

Computer Equipment Ancillary Equipment Computer Systems Records Deeds and Documents Transparencies Office Machines These terms shall have the same meanings as defined in Property Damage Insurance

The following notes refer to the Definitions stated below

- 1 To the extent that the Insured are accountable to the tax authorities for Value Added Tax all terms in this insurance shall be exclusive of such tax
- For the purpose of these definitions any adjustment implemented in current cost accounting shall be disregarded
- 3 In the definition of Insurable Amount the amount of Gross Revenue shall be proportionately increased to correspond with the Maximum Indemnity Period where it exceeds twelve months

#### **Indemnity Period**

the period beginning when the Damage occurs and ending when the results of the Business cease to be affected by the Damage but not exceeding the Maximum Indemnity Period (as shown in the Schedule)

#### **Gross Revenue**

the money paid or payable to the Insured for works done and for services rendered in course of the Business at the Premises

Standard Gross Revenue the Gross Revenue which would have been obtained during the Indemnity Period

#### **Insurable Amount**

the Gross Revenue which would have been earned in the twelve months immediately following the date of the Damage had the Damage not occurred after account has been taken of the trends of the Business and of the variations in or other circumstances affecting the Business either before or after the Damage or which would have affected the Business had the Damage not occurred (subject to the provision of Note 3 above)

#### **Outstanding Debit Balances**

the total recorded under the provisions of Debit Recording adjusted for

- B) amounts debited (or invoiced but not debited) and credited (including credit notes and cash not passed through the books at the time of the Damage) to the credit accounts of the Business in the period between the date to which the last monthly record relates and the date of the Damage
- C) any abnormal condition of trade which had or could have had a material effect on the Business so that the figures thus adjusted shall represent as nearly as reasonably practicable those which would have been obtained at the date of the Damage had the Damage not occurred

## **Extensions**

This insurance is extended to include loss as insured in consequence of

- 1 Damage by any of the Covers insured
  - A) at any premises not occupied by the Insured but used by them solely for storage purposes in Great Britain Northern Ireland the Channel Islands and the Isle of Man
  - B) to Transparencies Deeds and Documents Office Machines machinery plant accounting records other trade equipment and contents (but not motor vehicles Computers and Ancillary Equipment or Computer Systems Records) whilst temporarily removed from the Premises and in transit by road rail air or inland waterway to and from the Premises anywhere in Europe

provided that the Company's liability after the application of all other terms and conditions of the Policy shall not exceed 10% of the total of the sum insured or £250,000 whichever is the less (unless otherwise stated in the Schedule)

- B) injury or illness sustained by any customer or employee arising from or traceable to foreign or injurious matter in food or drink sold from the Premises
  - C) closing of the whole or part of the Premises by order of the Public Authority for the area in which the Premises are situate consequent upon defects in the drains and other sanitary arrangements at the Premises
  - D) murder or suicide occurring at the Premises
  - E) vermin and pests at the Premises
  - F) loss destruction or damage caused by any of the Covers to property in the vicinity of the Premises which prevents or hinders the use of the Premises or access thereto whether the Premises or the Insured's property therein shall be damaged or not but excluding Damage which prevents or hinders the supply of electricity gas water or

telecommunications services

provided that the Company's liability after the application of all other terms and conditions of the Policy shall not exceed 10% of the total of the sum insured or £250,000 whichever is the less

3 Damage by any of the Covers insured to property at any generating station or substation of the public electricity supply undertaking land based premises of the public gas supply undertaking or of any natural gas producer linked directly therewith water works or pumping station of the public water supply undertaking from which the Insured obtains electricity gas or water shall be deemed to have resulted from Damage to property at the Premises

provided that the Company's liability after the application of all other terms and conditions of the Policy shall not exceed 10% of the total of the sum insured or £250,000 whichever is the less

#### Memoranda

#### **Payments on Account**

Payments on account may be made during the Indemnity Period if desired

Automatic Reinstatement after a Loss (not applicable in respect of Outstanding Debit Balances)

In the absence of written notice by the Insured or the Company to the contrary the Company's liability shall not be reduced by the amount of any loss the Insured undertaking to pay the appropriate additional premium for such automatic reinstatement of cover

#### **Index Linking**

The Company will adjust the estimate of Gross Revenue or Additional Cost of Wording provided by the Insured and on which the premium for this Insurance is based in line with suitable indices of costs and the premium for renewal will be based on the adjusted amount.

## **Debit Recording Warranty**

The Insured shall maintain a record elsewhere than in the building in which the original records are kept showing the total amount outstanding in the credit accounts of the Business at the end of each month and in the event of Damage giving rise to a claim shall supply that record to the Company

# Liability Insurance

# **Definitions**

- 1 Person Entitled to Indemnity shall mean
  - A) the Insured
  - B) the personal representatives of the Insured in respect of legal liability incurred by the Insured
  - C) at the request of the Insured
  - 1) any principal
  - 2) any director or partner of the Insured
  - 3) any Person Employed

against legal liability in respect of which the Insured would have been entitled to indemnity under this Policy if the claim had been made against the Insured

- 4) the officers committees and members of the Insured's canteen social sports and welfare organisations and first aid fire ambulance medical and security services in their respective capacities as such but this shall not include medical or dental practitioners in relation to medical services provided
- 5) any director or partner of the Insured or Employee in respect of private work undertaken by any Person Employee for such director partner or Employee with the prior consent of the Insured

each of whom shall as though the Insured be subject to the terms of this Policy so far as they can apply

- 2 Employee shall mean any individual under a contract of service or apprenticeship with the Insured
- 3 Person Employed shall mean any
  - A) Employee
  - B) labour master and individuals supplied by him
  - C) individual employed by labour only sub-contractors
  - D) self employed individual (not being in partnership with the Insured)
  - E) individual hired to or borrowed by the Insured of the Insured
  - F) individual undertaking study or work experience while under the supervision
- 4 Injury shall mean

# Section 1

bodily injury death disease or illness

#### Sections 2 and 3

bodily injury death disease illness wrongful arrest or false imprisonment

- 5 Property shall mean material property
- **6** Business shall mean that which is specified in the Schedule and conducted solely from premises in Great Britain Northern Ireland the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man and shall include
  - A) ownership repair and maintenance of the Insured's own property
  - B) provision and management of canteen social sports and welfare organisations and first aid ambulance and medical services for the benefit of any Person Employed
  - C) fire and security services maintained solely for the protection of premises owned or occupied by the Insured
  - D) private work undertaken by any Person Employed for any director or partner of the Insured or Employee with the prior consent of the Insured

but in respect of Section 1 shall not include any work undertaken Offshore

7 Offshore shall mean embarkation on to a vessel or aircraft for conveyance to an offshore rig or platform until disembarkation from the conveyance on to land upon return from such offshore rig or platform

while under the direct control and supervision of the Insured

- **8** Event shall mean one occurrence or all occurrences of a series consequent on or attributable to one source or original cause
- 9 Insured's Contribution shall mean the amount or amounts specified in the Schedule which the Insured agrees to pay
- **10** Intellectual Property Rights shall mean any patent trade mark copyright registered design technical or commercial information or other intellectual property

The insurance provided by Section 1 is on a costs inclusive basis whereby the costs and expenses of the claimant and the costs and expenses (incurred by the Company or with the Company's written consent) of any Person Entitled to Indemnity are included within the Limit of Indemnity stated in the Schedule

# **Section 1 Employers' Liability**

The Company will provide indemnity to any Person Entitled to Indemnity

- 1 against legal liability for damages in respect of Injury of any Person Employed caused during any Period of Insurance
  - A) in Great Britain Northern Ireland the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man
  - B) while temporarily outside these territories

arising out of and in the course of employment by the Insured in the Business

- 2 against legal liability for claimant's costs and expenses in connection with 1 above
- 3 in respect of
  - A) costs of legal representation at
    - 1) any coroner's inquest or inquiry in respect of any death
    - 2) proceedings in any court arising out of any alleged breach of statutory duty resulting in Injury which may be the subject of indemnity under this Section
  - B) all other costs and expenses in relation to any matter which may form the subject of a claim for indemnity under 1 above

incurred with the Company's written consent

Provided that in respect of any one Event

- 1 the total amount payable under this Section (including all Extensions and Memoranda) shall not exceed the Limit of Indemnity
- 2 the Company may at any time pay the Limit of Indemnity (less any sums already paid or incurred) or any less amount for which at the absolute discretion of the Company the claims arising out of such Event can be settled The Company will then relinquish control of such claims and be under no further liability in respect thereof

# **Exclusions to Section 1**

The indemnity will not apply to legal liability

- 1 of whatsoever nature directly or indirectly caused by or contributed to by or arising from
  - (a) loss or destruction of or damage to any property whatsoever or any loss or expense whatsoever resulting or arising therefrom or any consequential loss
  - (b) any legal liability of whatsoever nature directly or indirectly caused by or contributed to by or arising from
  - ionising radiations or contamination by radioactivity from any nuclear fuel or from any nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel
  - (ii) the radioactive, toxic, explosive or other hazardous properties of any explosive nuclear assembly or nuclear component thereof.
- 2 in respect of Injury for which the Insured is required to arrange motor insurance or security in accordance with any road traffic legislation within the European Community

Extensions to Section 1 (each of which is subject otherwise to the terms of this Policy)

#### 1 Unsatisfied Court Judgements

In the event of a judgement for damages being obtained

- A) by any Employee or the personal representatives of any Employee in respect of Injury of the Employee caused during any Period of Insurance and arising out of and in the course of employment by the Insured in the Business
- B) against any company or individual operating from premises within Great Britain Northern Ireland the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man
- in any court situate in the territories specified in B) above and
- C) remaining unsatisfied in whole or in part six months after the date of such judgement

at the request of the Insured the Company will pay to the Employee or the personal representatives of the Employee the amount of any such damages and any awarded costs to the extent that they remain unsatisfied

#### Provided that

- A) there is no appeal outstanding
- B) if any payment is made under the terms of this Extension the Employee or the personal representatives of the Employee shall assign the judgement to the Company

## **2 Compensation for Court Attendance**

In the event of any of the undermentioned persons attending court as a witness at the request of the Company in connection with a claim in respect of which the Insured is entitled to indemnity under this Section the Company will provide compensation to the Insured at the following rates per day for each day on which attendance is required

A) any director or partner of the Insured £500 B) any Employee £250

# **Section 2 Public/Products Liability**

The Company will provide indemnity to any Person Entitled to Indemnity

- 1 up to the Limit of Indemnity against legal liability for damages in respect of
  - A) accidental Injury of any person
  - B) accidental loss of or damage to Property
  - C) nuisance trespass to land or trespass to goods or interference with any easement right of air light water or way other than legal liability for damages which result from a deliberate act or omission of the Insured or which is a natural consequence of the ordinary conduct of the Business and which could reasonably have been expected by the Insured having regard to the nature and circumstances of such act or omission

happening during any Period of Insurance in connection with the Business

- 2 against legal liability for claimant's costs and expenses in connection with 1 above
- 3 in respect of
  - A) costs of legal representation at
    - 1) any coroner's inquest or inquiry in respect of any death
    - 2) proceedings in any court arising out of any alleged breach of statutory duty resulting in any occurrence specified in 1 above

which may be the subject of indemnity under this Section

B) all other costs and expenses in relation to any matter which may form the subject of a claim for indemnity under 1 above incurred with the Company's written consent

# Provided that in respect of

- A) any one Event
- B) all Events happening during any Period of Insurance in respect of products supplied
- C) all incidents considered by the Company to have occurred during any Period of Insurance in respect of pollution or contamination of buildings or other structures or of water or land or of the atmosphere

the following shall apply

- 1 the total amount payable by the Company in respect of 1 above and all Extensions and Memoranda shall not exceed the Limit of Indemnity
- 2 the Insured's Contribution in respect of damages and claimant's costs and expenses will be payable before the Company shall be liable to make any payment
- 3 the Company may at any time pay the Limit of Indemnity (less any sums already paid as damages) or any less amount for which at the absolute discretion of the Company the claims arising out of such Event can be settled The Company will then relinquish control of such claims and be under no further liability in respect thereof except for costs and expenses for which the Company may be responsible prior to the date of such payment
- **4** where the Company is liable to indemnify more than one person the total amount of indemnity in respect of damages shall not exceed the Limit of Indemnity

#### **Exclusions to Section 2**

The indemnity will not apply to legal liability

- 1 arising from or out of the ownership possession or use by or on behalf of the Insured or any Person Entitled to Indemnity of any
  - A) mechanically propelled vehicle other than legal liability arising out of
    - 1) the use of plant as a tool of trade on site
    - 2) the use of plant at the premises of the Insured
    - 3) the loading or unloading of any vehicle

except where indemnity is provided by any motor insurance contract or where insurance or security is required by law

- B) aircraft or other aerial device
- C) aerospatial device
- D) hovercraft
- E) water-borne craft (other than hand-propelled or sailing craft in inland or territorial waters)
- 2 for bodily injury to or death disease or illness of any Person Employed arising out of and in the course of employment by the Insured in the Business
- **3** for or arising from loss of or damage to any Property which at the time of the Event giving rise to such legal liability is owned by or held in trust by or in the custody or control of the Insured other than
  - A) Employees' directors' partners' or visitors' personal effects including vehicles and their contents
  - B) premises and their contents not owned by or leased or rented to the Insured at which the Insured is undertaking work in connection with the Business
  - C) premises and their fixtures and fittings leased or rented to the Insured unless such legal liability
    - 1) has been accepted by agreement in which case the indemnity will only be provided to the extent that such liability would have attached in the absence of such agreement
    - 2) arises from an agreement to maintain in force insurance in respect of loss of or damage to such premises and their fixtures and fittings
- 4 caused by or arising out of pollution or contamination of buildings or other structures or of water or land or the atmosphere unless the pollution or contamination is caused by a sudden identifiable unintended and unexpected incident which takes place in its entirety at a specific moment in time and place during any Period of Insurance

Provided that all pollution or contamination which arises out of one incident shall be considered by the Company for the purposes of this Policy to have occurred at the time such incident takes place

**5** A) in respect of loss of or damage to any

1) product supplied2) contract work executedby the Insured

caused by any defect therein or the unsuitability thereof for its intended purpose

B) for the costs of recall removal repair alteration replacement or reinstatement of any

1) product supplied2) contract work executedby the Insured

necessitated by any defect therein or the unsuitability thereof for its intended purpose

6 arising from or in connection with



**7** arising from or in connection with any



where such legal liability has been accepted by agreement except to the extent that such liability would have attached in the absence of such agreement

- 8 for the costs of remedying any defect or alleged defect in premises disposed of by the Insured
- 9 for
  - A) fines or penalties
  - B) compensation ordered or awarded by a Court of Criminal Jurisdiction
  - C) aggravated exemplary or punitive damages awarded by any court outside Great Britain Northern Ireland the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man
- 10 arising out of or in connection with any breach of professional duty
- 11 Date Recognition Exclusion

The indemnity will not apply to any liability of whatsoever nature which is caused directly or indirectly by or arises out of the Failure of a System

#### **Definitions**

For the purposes of this Exclusion

Failure of a System means the failure or inability of a System (whether or not owned by the Insured)

- 1) correctly to recognise or utilise any data concerning a date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date) as being such calendar date as the data is intended to represent
- 2) to operate as a result of any command programmed into the System utilising any date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date)

System includes computers other computing and electronic and mechanical equipment linked to a computer hardware software programs data electronic data processing equipment Microchips and anything which relies on a Microchip for any part of its operation

Microchip includes integrated circuits and microcontrollers

Subject otherwise to all the terms Exclusions and Conditions of this insurance

Extensions to Section 2 (each of which is subject otherwise to the terms of this Policy)

# 1 Cross Liabilities

If the Insured comprises more than one party the Company will provide indemnity to each in the same manner and to the same extent as if a separate Policy had been issued to each

Provided that the total amount payable in respect of damages shall not exceed the Limit of Indemnity

# **2 Compensation for Court Attendance**

In the event of any of the undermentioned persons attending court as a witness at the request of the Company in connection with a claim in respect of which the Insured is entitled to indemnity under this Section the Company will provide compensation to the Insured at the following rates per day for each day on which attendance is required

A) any director or partner of the Insured £500
B) any Employee £250

## 3 Contingent Motor Liability

Notwithstanding Exclusion 1A) the Company will provide indemnity to the Insured against legal liability arising out of the use in the course of the Business by any Employee of any mechanically propelled vehicle not the property of nor provided by the Insured

The indemnity will not apply to legal liability

- A) in respect of loss of or damage to such vehicle or to property conveyed therein
- B) arising while such vehicle is being driven by the Insured
- C) in respect of which the Insured is entitled to indemnity under any other insurance
- D) arising outside Great Britain Northern Ireland the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man

#### 4 Overseas Personal Liability

The Company will provide indemnity to the Insured and if the Insured so requests any Employee or director or partner of the Insured against legal liability incurred in a personal capacity while temporarily outside Great Britain Northern Ireland the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man in connection with the Business

The indemnity will not apply

- A) to legal liability arising out of the ownership or occupation of land or buildings
- B) where indemnity is provided by any other insurance

#### 5 Data Protection Act

The Company will within the terms of this Subsection indemnify the Insured against liability for damages in respect of Damage arising out of any claim under Article 82 of Regulation (EU) 2016/679 (the "General Data Protection Regulation" or the "GDPR") and equivalent provision under the Data Protection Act 2018 (all as amended, updated or re-enacted from time to time) not otherwise insured hereunder and first made against the Insured during the Period of Insurance provided that:

- 1. The Company's liability under this Extension for damages costs and expenses arising out of all claims made during any one Period of Insurance shall not exceed £1,000,000 or the amount stated as the Limit of Indemnity in the Schedule to this Subsection.
- 2. The Insured have registered in accordance with the terms of the said Act or have applied for such registration which has not been refused or withdrawn
- 3. The Company shall not provide indemnity
  - 3.1 for 10 per cent of each claim subject to a minimum of £500 and a maximum of £5,000
  - 3.2 against liability caused by or arising from a deliberate act by or omission of any person entitled to indemnity under this Extension if the result thereof could reasonably have been expected having regard to the nature and circumstances of such act or omission
  - 3.3 for the costs of replacing reinstating rectifying or erasing any personal data
  - 3.4 against liability caused by or arising from any incident or circumstances known to You at inception of this Extension which may give rise to a claim
  - 3.5 against liability caused by or arising from the recording processing or provision of data for reward or the determining of the financial status of a person
  - 3.6 against Contractual Liability
  - 3.7 against liability in respect of Bodily Injury to any person or Damage to Property

# **Section 3 Legal Defence Costs**

The Company will provide indemnity to the Insured and if the Insured so requests any Employee or director or partner of the Insured

up to the Limit of Indemnity in respect of

- A) legal costs and other expenses incurred with the Company's written consent
- B) costs awarded against the Insured or any director partner or Person Employed

in connection with the defence of criminal proceedings brought or in appeal against a conviction arising from such proceedings relating to an offence alleged to have been committed during any Period of Insurance in the course of the Business but only in respect of proceedings brought as stated in Parts **A** and **B** below

#### Part A

In respect of a breach of

1 the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 or the Health and Safety at Work (Northern Ireland) Order 1978 where the proceedings relate to the health safety and welfare of any Person Employed director or partner of the Insured

#### Part B

In respect of a breach of

- 1 the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 or the Health and Safety at Work (Northern Ireland) Order 1978 where the proceedings relate to the health safety and welfare of any person other than a Person Employed director or partner of the Insured
- 2 Part II of the Consumer Protection Act 1987

Provided that in respect of Part A and B

- 1 the indemnity will not apply
  - A) to fines or penalties of any kind
  - B) to compensation ordered or awarded by a Court of Criminal Jurisdiction
  - C) where Injury of any person or loss of or damage to Property has occurred
  - D) where indemnity is provided by any other insurance
  - E) to proceedings consequent upon any deliberate act or omission by
    - 1) the Insured
    - 2) any partner or director of the Insured
  - 3) any Employee with any specific responsibility for compliance with the legislation specified in this Section which could reasonably have been expected to constitute a breach of the legislation specified in this Section
- 2 the indemnity will apply only where shown in the Schedule
- 3 the Company may at any time pay the Limit of Indemnity (less any sums already paid) or any less amount for which at the absolute discretion of the Company the claims arising can be settled but including any amount for which the Company may be responsible prior to the date of such payment The Company will then relinquish control of such claims and be under no further liability in respect thereof
- **4** where the Company is liable to indemnify more than one person the total amount of indemnity shall not exceed the Limit of Indemnity

#### **Special Provision**

The Company shall pass notification to an organisation in the UK with which it has an agreement for the provision of legal defence costs services and which shall thereafter administer claims settlement on the Company's behalf

# **Exclusions to Section 3**

#### **Date Recognition Exclusion**

The indemnity will not apply to proceedings which result directly or indirectly from or arise out of the Failure of a System

For the purposes of this Exclusion -

Failure of a System means the failure or inability of a System (whether or not owned by the insured)

- 1) correctly to recognise or utilise any data concerning a date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date) as being such calendar date as the data is intended to represent
- 2) to operate as a result of any command programmed into the System utilising any date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date)

System includes computers other computing and electronic and mechanical equipment linked to a computer hardware software programs data electronic data processing equipment Microchips and anything which relies on a Microchip for any part of its operation

Microchip includes integrated circuits and microcontrollers

Subject otherwise to all the terms Exclusions and Conditions of this insurance

Ascot Office Policy Wording V1 Page 33 of 52

# **Computer Equipment Insurance**

If any of the Property Insured described in the Schedule suffers Damage at the Premises or whilst temporarily away from the Premises anywhere in the world (unless otherwise stated in the Schedule) by any of the Covers insured the Company will in accordance with the provisions of the insurance pay to the Insured

- 1) in respect of Computer and Ancillary Equipment and Computer Systems Records the amount of loss or at its option reinstate or replace such property
- 2) in respect of Additional Cost of Working and Loss of Gross Revenue the amount of loss resulting from the interruption or interference with the Insured's Business at the Premises caused by the Damage

provided that payment has been made or liability admitted for the Damage under an insurance covering the interest of the Insured in the property

٥r

payment would have been made or liability admitted for the Damage but for the operation of a proviso in such insurance excluding liability for losses below a specified amount

The Company's liability in any one Period of Insurance shall not exceed in the whole the total sum insured or in respect of any one item its sum insured or any other stated limit of liability

For the purpose of this insurance Damage shall mean loss destruction or damage

#### **Covers**

The following are the Covers insured except as otherwise stated in the Schedule

- 1 A Fire excluding Damage
  - 1) by explosion resulting from fire
  - 2) to property caused by its undergoing any process involving the application of heat
  - B **Explosion** excluding Damage
    - 1) caused by the bursting of any boiler economiser or other vessel machine or apparatus belonging to or under the control of the Insured in which internal pressure is due to steam only
    - 2) to any vessel machine or apparatus or its contents resulting from the explosion thereof but this shall not exclude Damage caused by explosion of
    - any boiler
    - gas

used for domestic purposes only

- **C** Lightning
- D Aircraft or other aerial devices or articles dropped therefrom
- **2 Earthquake** excluding Damage caused by fire
- 3 Riot civil commotion strikers locked-out workers or persons taking part in labour disturbances or malicious persons excluding Damage
  - 1) arising from confiscation requisition or destruction by order of the government or any public authority
  - 2) arising from cessation of work
  - 3) A) in the course of theft or attempted theft
    - B) in respect of any building which is empty or not in use directly caused by malicious persons not acting on behalf of or in connection with any political organisation
- 4 Storm or flood excluding Damage
  - 1) attributable solely to change in the water table level
  - 2) caused by frost subsidence ground heave or landslip
  - 3) to property in the open
- 5 Escape of water from any tank apparatus or pipe excluding Damage
  - 1) by water discharged or leaking from an automatic sprinkler installation
  - 2) in respect of any building which is empty or not in use
- 6 Impact by any road vehicle (including any fork lift truck or other industrial vehicle) or animal

## 7 Accidental escape of water from any automatic sprinkler installation excluding Damage

- 1) by freezing in any building which is empty or not in use
- 2) by heat caused by fire

## 8 Theft (which is deemed to include attempted theft) excluding Damage

- 1) expedited or in any way brought about by the Insured or any director partner or employee of the Insured
- 2) due to a person obtaining any property by deception
- 3) due to disappearance unexplained or inventory shortage
- 4) to property in transit unless it is in the custody of a Director principal partner or an employee of the Insured
- 5) to property in an unattended vehicle unless the property is in a locked boot or glove compartment and all points of access to the vehicle are locked or the vehicle is stolen at the same time

## 9 Subsidence ground heave or landslip excluding Damage

- 1) arising from the settlement or movement of made-up ground or by coastal or river erosion
- 2) occurring as a result of the construction demolition structural alteration or structural repair of any property at the Premises
- 3) arising from normal settlement or bedding down of new structures
- 4) commencing prior to the granting of cover under this insurance

#### 10 Any other accident excluding Damage

- 1) by any of
  - A) the Covers
  - B) the causes expressly excluded from the Covers specified in paragraphs 1-9 or 11 (whether or not insured)
- 2) to any property caused by
  - A) its own faulty or defective design or materials
  - B) inherent vice latent defect gradual deterioration wear and tear
  - C) faulty or defective workmanship operational error or omission on the part of the Insured or any of their employees but this shall not exclude subsequent Damage which itself results from a cause not otherwise excluded
- 3) caused by
  - A) corrosion rust wet or dry rot shrinkage evaporation loss of weight dampness dryness marring scratching vermin or insects
  - B) change in temperature colour flavour texture or finish
  - C) joint leakage failure of welds cracking fracturing collapse or overheating of boilers economisers superheaters pressure vessels or any range of steam and feed piping in connection therewith
  - D) mechanical or electrical breakdown or derangement in respect of the particular machine apparatus or equipment in which the breakdown or derangement originates
  - E) the deliberate act of a supply undertaking in withholding the supply of water gas electricity fuel or telecommunication services

but this shall not exclude

- 1) such Damage which itself results from other Damage and is not otherwise excluded
- 2) subsequent Damage which itself results from a cause not otherwise excluded
- 4) caused by
  - A) pollution or contamination
  - B) acts of fraud or dishonesty
  - C) disappearance unexplained or inventory shortage misfiling or misplacing of information
- 5) to
  - A) a building or structure caused by its own collapse or cracking
  - B) property in the open
  - C) property resulting from its undergoing any process of production packing treatment testing commissioning servicing or repair
- 6) to
  - A) property in transit unless in the custody of a Director principal partner or employee of the Insured
  - B) property in an unattended vehicle unless the property is in a locked boot or glove compartment and all points of access to the vehicle are locked or the vehicle is stolen at the same time
  - C) property or structures in course of construction or erection and materials or supplies in connection with all such property or structures
- 7) recoverable under any guarantee or Maintenance Agreement in force at the happening of the Damage
- **11 Mechanical or Electrical Breakdown or derangement** in respect of the particular machine apparatus or equipment in which the breakdown or derangement occurs excluding Damage
  - A) by any of
    - 1) the Covers
    - 2) the causes expressly excluded from the Covers specified in paragraphs 1-9 (whether or not insured)

- B) to any property caused by or consisting of wear and tear or deterioration due to atmospheric conditions rust or corrosion faulty or defective workmanship operational error or omission on the part of the Insured or their employees but this shall not exclude subsequent Damage which itself results from a cause not otherwise excluded
- C) to property in the open
- D) which would be covered by any guarantee or Maintenance Agreement whether or not in force at the happening of the Damage
- E) to property resulting from
  - its undergoing any process of production packing treatment testing commissioning servicing or repair
  - pollution or contamination
  - acts of fraud or dishonesty
  - the deliberate act of a supply undertaking in withholding the supply of water gas electricity fuel or telecommunication services

but this shall not exclude

- such Damage or subsequent Damage which itself results from other Damage and is not otherwise excluded

#### **Insured's Contribution**

This insurance does not cover the Insured's Contribution as specified in the Schedule being the first part of each and every loss to be borne by the Insured at each separate premises as ascertained after the application of all other terms and conditions of the insurance including the Underinsurance Provision.

#### **Exclusions**

This insurance does not cover

#### **A Marine Policies**

Damage to property which at the time of the happening of the Damage is insured by or would but for the existence of this insurance be insured by any marine policy or policies except in respect of any excess beyond the amount which would have been payable under the marine policy or policies had this insurance not been effected

#### **B** Sonic Bangs

Damage caused by pressure waves caused by aircraft or other aerial devices travelling at sonic or supersonic speeds

#### **C** Pollution and Contamination

Damage caused by pollution or contamination except (unless otherwise excluded) destruction of or damage to the Property Insured caused by

- 1) pollution or contamination which itself results from any Cover insured (other than Cover 10)
- 2) any Cover insured (other than Cover 10) which itself results from pollution or contamination

## **D** Satellite Telecommunications

Additional Cost of Working or Loss of Gross Revenue arising from

- failure of any satellite prior to its obtaining its full operating function or while in or beyond the final year of its design life
- atmospheric solar or lunar conditions causing temporary interference with transmission to or from any satellite

# **E Computer Systems Records**

Computer Systems Records unless at the time of the Damage a back up copy is maintained either at a location other than the Premises or alternatively a back-up copy is kept in a fireproof safe or cabinet on the Premises

#### **F** Maintenance Agreement

Additional Cost of Working or Loss of Gross Revenue incurred during the first 48 hours following Damage as provided by Cover 11 unless a Maintenance Agreement is in force at the time of the Damage

# **G Date Recognition Exclusion**

Unless Damage or interruption of or interference with the Business or Damage results from any Covers insured except 10 the Company shall not be liable for loss resulting from direct or indirect Damage or loss of information or interruption of or interference with the Business caused by any Failure of a System resulting in Damage (whether direct or indirect) loss of information or interruption of or interference with the Business (howsoever caused) to any such System or to any other Property Insured

For the purposes of this Exclusion –

Failure of a System means the failure or inability of a System (whether or not owned by the Insured)

- 1) correctly to recognise or utilise any data concerning a date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date) as being such calendar date as the data is intended to represent
- 2) to operate as a result of any command programmed into the System utilising any date (whether a date in the Year 2000 or any other date)

System includes computers other computing and electronic and mechanical equipment linked to a computer hardware software programs data electronic data processing equipment Microchips and anything which relies on a Microchip for any part of its operation

Microchip includes integrated circuits and microcontrollers

#### **Definitions**

### **Property Insured**

- Computer Equipment
- Ancillary Equipment
- Computer Systems Records



at the Premises or whilst temporarily away from the Premises anywhere in the world unless otherwise stated in the Schedule

all as defined below or more fully described in the Schedule and all being the property of the Insured or for which they are responsible but excluding property which is more specifically insured

## **Computer Equipment**

All computer equipment including interconnecting wiring fixed disks and telecommunications equipment used for the storage and communication of electronically processed data owned by or leased hired or rented to the Insured

#### **Ancillary Equipment**

Ancillary Equipment solely for use with the Computer Equipment comprising air conditioning generating voltage regulating temperature and humidity recording electronic access and heat and smoke detection equipment fire extinguishing gas bottles and pipework and computer room partitioning owned by or leased hired or rented to the Insured

### **Computer Systems Records**

All current and backup computer records (excluding fixed disks and paper records of any description) incorporating stored programs and/or information stored thereon

### **Maintenance Agreement**

A maintenance rental hire or lease agreement which provides a minimum service of on-call remedial and/or corrective maintenance at inclusive cost

### The following notes refer to the Definitions stated below

- 1 To the extent that the Insured is accountable to the tax authorities for Value Added Tax all terms in this insurance shall be exclusive of such tax
- 2 For the purpose of these definitions any adjustment implemented in current cost accounting shall be disregarded
- **3** In the definition of Insurable Amount the amount of Gross Revenue shall be proportionately increased to correspond with the Maximum Indemnity Period where it exceeds twelve months

# **Indemnity Period**

the period beginning when the Damage occurs and ending when the results of the Business cease to be affected by the Damage but not exceeding the Maximum Indemnity period (as shown in the Schedule)

### **Gross Revenue**

the money paid or payable to the Insured for work done and for services rendered in course of the Business at the Premises

# **Standard Gross Revenue**

the Gross Revenue which would have been obtained during the Indemnity Period

# **Insurable Amount**

the Gross Revenue which would have would been earned in the twelve months immediately following the date of the Damage



had the Damage not occurred after account has been taken of the trends of the Business and of the variations in or other circumstances affecting the Business either before or after the damage or which would have affected the business had the damage not occurred (subject to the provision of Note 3)

Ascot Office Policy Wording V1 Page 37 of 52

## The Insurance Provided

# In respect of Computer and Ancillary Equipment

the Company will pay-

#### A the cost of reinstatement being

- where the property is destroyed or damaged beyond economic repair replacement by new property of equal
  performance and/or capacity or if such be impossible replacement by property having the nearest higher performance
  and/or capacity to the property lost destroyed or damaged
- where the property is damaged the cost of repairing or restoring the damaged portions to a working condition substantially the same as but not better or more extensive than its condition when new
- B the costs incurred by the Insured in taking reasonable but exceptional measures to avoid or mitigate Damage provided that
  - the impending Damage does not stem from any reasonably foreseeable cause and that Damage would be the natural outcome to be expected in the absence of such measures
  - the Company is satisfied that Damage has been avoided or reduced in consequence of the measures taken
- C the costs necessarily and reasonably incurred in the making of temporary repairs upon and/or the expediting of the repair reinstatement or replacement of property consequent upon the Damage provided that the liability of the Company shall not exceed £5,000
- D the costs of removing debris being the costs incurred with the Company's consent in removing debris dismantling demolishing shoring up and propping portions of the property but excluding any costs or expenses
  - 1) incurred in removing debris except from the site of such property damaged and the area immediately adjacent to such site
  - 2) arising from pollution or contamination of property not covered by this Policy Provided that the liability of the Company shall not exceed £5,000
- E the cost of professional fees (including Consulting Engineers fees) incurred with the consent of the Company in conducting investigations and/or tests into possible repair (whether or not successful) replacement or reinstatement following Damage
- F the costs necessarily and reasonably incurred by the Insured in the reinstatement of programmes and/or information onto fixed disks

The undernoted provisions apply

# 1 Partial Damage

Where Damage occurs to only part of the property the Company's liability shall not exceed the amount which the Company would have been liable to pay had the property been wholly destroyed

# 2 Reinstatement on Another Site

The work of reinstatement may be carried out wholly or partially upon another site and in any manner suitable to the requirements of the Insured provided that it does not increase the Company's liability

#### 3 Insurable Amount

For the purpose of the Underinsurance Provision the Insurable Amount shall be the day One Reinstatement Value

Day One Reinstatement value shall mean the total of the insured costs A D E and F in reinstating the Property Insured to a condition substantially the same as when new at the level of costs applying at the commencement of the Period of Insurance

### 4 Alternative Basis of Settlement

The Company's liability shall be limited to the Alternative Basis of Settlement (as defined below)

- A) until the cost of reinstatement has actually been incurred
- B) if the work of reinstatement is not carried out as quickly as is reasonably practicable
- C) if at the time of its Damage the property is covered by any other insurance effected by or on behalf of the Insured and such other insurance is not on the identical basis of reinstatement defined in cost A
- D) if in the Schedule it is stated that the Alternative Basis of Settlement applies

Under the Alternative Basis of Settlement the Company will pay the value of the property at the time of its destruction or the amount of the damage including the cost of

- minimising Damage and temporary repairs
- removing debris
- professional fees

as defined in costs B C D E and F above and subject to the provisions and exceptions applying to those costs

For the purpose of the Underinsurance Provision the Insurable Amount shall be the total of the value at the time of the Damage of the Property Insured by the item and the additional costs D E and F

# **In respect of Computer Systems Records**

the Company will pay-

- the value of the materials as stationery
- the clerical labour and computer time expended in reproducing such Computer Systems Records
- the costs necessarily and reasonably incurred in connection with the reproduction of any information to be recorded but excluding the value to the Insured of the information
- the cost incurred with the Company's consent in removing debris dismantling demolishing shoring up and propping portions of the property but excluding any costs or expenses
  - 1) incurred in removing debris except from the site of such property damaged and the area immediately adjacent to such site
  - 2) arising from pollution or contamination of property not insured by this policy

The undernoted provision applies

For the purpose of the Underinsurance Provision the Insurable Amount shall be the value at the time of Damage

# In respect of Additional Cost of Working

Subject to the provision below the Company will pay as indemnity the expenditure necessarily and reasonably incurred in order to minimise any interruption of or interference with the Business during the Indemnity Period in consequence of the Damage

The following is the provision referred to above

#### Professional Accountants' charges

The Company will pay the reasonable charges payable by the Insured to their professional accountants for producing information required by the Company under the terms of the Claims Conditions and for reporting that such information is in accordance with the Insured's accounts

# In respect of Loss of Gross Revenue

Subject to the provisions below the Company will pay as indemnity –

#### A) In respect of Loss of Gross Revenue

the amount by which the Gross Revenue during the Indemnity Period shall in consequence of the Damage fall short of the Standard Gross Revenue

# B) In respect of Increase in Cost of Working

the additional expenditure necessarily and reasonably incurred for the sole purpose of avoiding or diminishing the Loss of Gross Revenue which but for that expenditure would have taken place during the Indemnity Period in consequence of the Damage but not exceeding the total of

- the amount of the reduction in Gross Revenue thereby avoided plus
- 5% of the sum insured by the item (but not more than £250,000)

The following are the provisions referred to above

# 1 Alternative Trading

If during the Indemnity Period work shall be done or services rendered elsewhere than at the Premises for the benefit of the Business either by the Insured or by others on the Insured's behalf the money paid or payable in respect of such work or services shall be taken into account in arriving at the Gross Revenue during the Indemnity Period

### 2 Savings

If any of the charges or expenses of the Business payable out of Gross Revenue shall cease or reduce in consequence of the Damage the amount of such savings during the Indemnity Period shall be deducted from the amount payable

#### **3** Professional Accountant's Charges

The Company will pay the reasonable charges payable by the Insured to their professional accountants for producing information required by the Company under the terms of the Claims Conditions and for reporting that such information is in accordance with the Insured's accounts

4 Underinsurance

If the sum insured is less than the Insurable Amount the amount payable shall be proportionately reduced

# **Special Provisions**

# **Underinsurance**

If at the time of the Damage

- the Declared Value by the relative item on Computer and Ancillary Equipment
- the sum insured by the relative item on Computer Systems Records is less than the Insurable Amount the amount otherwise payable shall be proportionately reduced

#### Declared Value shall mean

the base value shown in brackets below the sum insured such value excluding any provision for inflation but if the loss is settled under the Alternative Basis of Settlement the Declared Value shall be 115% of the base value shown or if no base value is shown it shall be deemed to be the sum insured

# **Reinstatement by the Company**

The Company may at its own option reinstate or replace any property destroyed or damaged without being bound to reinstate exactly or completely but only as circumstances permit and in reasonably sufficient manner The Insured shall at their own expense produce and provide the Company with all such plans documents books and information as the Company may reasonably require

### **Extinguishment Expenses**

The Company will pay the reasonable costs incurred by the Insured in refilling fire extinguishing appliances and replacing used sprinkler heads solely in consequence of insured Damage to the Property Insured

#### Memoranda

#### **Alterations and Additions**

If during the Period of Insurance alterations or additions are made to any of the Property Insured or additional Computer or Ancillary Equipment is acquired at any Premises or elsewhere as covered by this insurance and such additional property is not otherwise insured it will be held covered under the relative items of this insurance from the time from which the Insured became responsible for it until the next renewal of the insurance at which date specific insurance shall be effected The sum insured (and Declared Value) by the item shall be deemed to be increased for that period only by the value of the additional property insured under the item but by not more than 10% in respect of additional property at any one Premises All the provisions and conditions of this insurance (including the Alteration Condition) apply to this extension except as expressly varied

## **Automatic Reinstatement after a Loss**

In the absence of written notice by the Insured or the Company to the contrary within 30 days of the occurrence of any Damage the Company's Liability shall not be reduced by the amount of any loss and the Insured shall pay the appropriate additional premium for such automatic reinstatement of cover provided that in respect of Damage by Theft (if insured) the automatic reinstatement shall apply on the first occasion only in each Period of Insurance

## **Index Linking**

The Company will adjust the sum insured (and the Declared Value where appropriate) by each item on Computer and Ancillary equipment and Computer Systems Records in line with a suitable index of costs and the premium for renewal will be based on the adjusted amounts

# **Waiver of Subrogation Rights against users**

The Company shall waive any rights of subrogation against any user of the Property Insured Provided that such user

- 1) has the authority of the Insured to use the Property and
- 2) shall as if he were the Insured observe fulfil and be subject to the terms exceptions and conditions of this Policy

# **Additional Computer Rental**

The Company will pay the additional rental arising out of the replacement of a lease/hire agreement in respect of the Property Insured by a new contract for similar property consequent upon Damage up to an amount not exceeding £7,500

# **Incompatibility of Computer Records**

The Company will pay

A) the costs of modifying the Computer Equipment

or

B) the costs of replacement of Computer Systems Records together with reinstatement of programmes and/or information thereon

(whichever is less) to achieve compatability in the event Damage to the Computer Equipment has resulted in undamaged Computer Systems Records being incompatible with the replacement Computer Equipment subject to the Company's liability not exceeding £10,000

### **Accidental Discharge of Gas Systems**

The Company will pay the cost of refilling the cylinder(s) of any gas flooding systems installed solely for the protection of the Property Insured arising out of the accidental discharge of such system provided the liability of the Company shall not exceed £5,000

However the Company shall not be responsible for any costs incurred as a direct result of the gas system being installed commissioned or undergoing any form of testing

# **Payments on Account**

(Additional Cost of Working and Loss of Gross Revenue items only)
Payments on account may be made during the Indemnity Period if desired

### **Special Condition**

(Additional Cost of Working and Loss of Gross Revenue items only)

Damage shall be extended to include

- A) Damage recoverable under any guarantee or Maintenance Agreement on the Property Insured
- B) Damage in respect of any item due to its own breakdown or derangement if a Maintenance Agreement is not in force on such item
- C) the accidental failure or fluctuation of the public supply of electricity at the terminal ends of the public supply authority's service feeders at the premises in which the Property is situated not occasioned by the deliberate act of any supply authority nor the exercise by any such authority of its power to withhold or restrict supply other than for the sole purpose of safeguarding life or the authority's property The indemnity period shall commence 24 hours after the commencement of the failure of supply and not as stated in the insurance provided
- D) the accidental failure of the electricity supply in the distribution wiring within the premises in which the Property Insured is situated not occasioned by failure as in (B) above
- E) the accidental failure of any telecommunications system used in connection with the Property Insured not occasioned by
  - 1) the deliberate act of any telecommunications authority nor the exercise by any such authority of its power to withhold or restrict operation of the system nor the inability of any such authority to maintain the system due to industrial action by any of its employees
  - 2) the use by the Insured of machinery and equipment which is not acceptable to the telecommunications authority as properly installed and compatible with the telecommunications system

The indemnity period shall commence 24 hours after the commencement of the failure of supply and not as stated in the insurance provided

- F) 1) physical loss of or damage to the premises in which the Property is situated or to any contents thereof or to property in the vicinity at
  - the premises
  - and/or
  - 2) the exercise by any public and/or police authority of its power for the sole purpose of safeguarding life which prevents the Insured access to and/or using the Computer Equipment

provided that the Company's liability after the application of all other terms and conditions of the Policy shall not exceed 10% of the total of the sum insured or £250,000 whichever is the less

#### **Risk Protections**

### A Automatic Sprinkler and Fire Installations

(Applicable if a reduced premium rate is allowed on account of such an installation or if the insurance covers Damage by the accidental escape of water from a sprinkler installation)

The Insured shall

- 1) take all reasonable steps to
  - A) prevent frost and other damage to the installations and in so far as it is their responsibility
  - B) maintain the installations (including the automatic external alarm signal) in efficient working order
  - C) maintain ready access to the water supply control facilities
- 2) in the event that changes repairs or alterations to the installations are proposed notify the Company in writing and obtain its prior agreement in writing
- 3) allow the Company access to the Premises at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the installations
- 4) carry out the routine tests laid down by the Company and remedy promptly any defect revealed by a test

In the event that alterations or repairs become necessary to the automatic sprinkler installation the Company may at its option suspend any cover which is granted against Damage by the accidental escape of water from the installation until the alterations or repairs have been carried out and approved by the Company Notice of any such action will be given the Company in writing

#### **B** Fire Extinguishing Appliances

The Insured shall maintain all fire extinguishing appliances in efficient working order

## **C Security Precautions**

(Applicable to any cover granted in respect of Damage by Theft)

It is a condition precedent to the Company's liability for loss or damage that

- A) in respect of any Intruder Alarm System installed at the Premises
  - 1) the Intruder Alarm System is maintained in full and effective working order under a contract to provide both corrective and preventive maintenance with the installer or such other contractor agreed by the Company in writing
  - 2) the Business Premises are not left unattended
    - A) unless the Intruder Alarm System is tested and set in its entirety and is together with the means of communication used to transmit signals in full and effective operation and where the equipment permits any Alarm Receiving Centre to which the Intruder Alarm System is connected has acknowledged the setting signal
    - B) if police response to alarm calls has been withdrawn without the written agreement of the Company
  - 3) where the Intruder Alarm System is required or approved by the Company as a condition of cover it is installed in accordance with a specification agreed in writing by the Company
  - 4) no alteration to or substitution of
    - A) any part of the Intruder Alarm System
    - B) the procedures agreed by the Insured for police or any other response to any activation of or other warning signal pertaining to the Intruder Alarm System
    - C) the maintenance contract shall be made without the written agreement of the Company
  - 5) no structural alteration of or changes in layout to the Premises that could affect operation of the Intruder Alarm System shall be made without the written agreement of the Company
  - 6) the Insured shall maintain secrecy of codes for operation of the Intruder Alarm System and shall not leave details of such codes at the Business Premises when the Business Premises are unattended
  - 7) the Insured shall appoint at least two Keyholders and shall record details of the Keyholders with the police and any Alarm Receiving Centre to which the Intruder Alarm System signals
  - 8) any change of Keyholder details shall be notified immediately to the police and any Alarm Receiving Centre to which the Intruder Alarm System signals
  - 9) in the event of notification of any activation of the Intruder Alarm System or interruption of the means of communication during any period that the system is set a Keyholder shall attend and allow access to the Business Premises without delay
  - 10) in the event that the Insured receives any notification
    - A) from the police alarm installer/maintenance contractor or Alarm Receiving Centre that response to alarm signals or line interruptions from the Intruder Alarm System may be withdrawn or the level of response reduced or delayed
    - B) from a Local Authority or Magistrate imposing any requirement for abatement of nuisance
    - C) that the Intruder Alarm System cannot be returned to or maintained in full working order the Insured shall advise the Company as soon as possible and in any event not later than 10am on the Company's next working day and comply with any subsequent requirements stipulated by the Company
- B) whenever the Business Premises are left unattended
  - 1) all locks bolts and other protective devices are in full and effective operation
  - 2) all keys (including those relating to any part of the Intruder Alarm System) are removed from the Business Premises

# **Interpretations**

Intruder Alarm System includes all lines and equipment used to transmit the signals to and from the Premises

Keyholder shall mean any person or keyholding company authorised by the Insured who is available at all times when the Intruder Alarm System is set to accept notification of faults or alarm signals or messages relating to the Intruder Alarm System

Business Premises shall mean that part of the Premises occupied by the Insured for the purpose of the Business described in the Schedule

# D The Minimum Standard of Security

(Applicable to any cover granted in respect of Damage by Theft)

It is a condition precedent to the Company's liability for Damage that the Insured shall have implemented the following security measures within 8 weeks of commencement of Theft Cover

- A) The Final Exit Door of the Premises be fitted with either
  - for timber or steel framed doors a mortice deadlock which has 5 or more levers and/or conforms to BS3621:1980 specification for thief resistant locks and matching boxed striking plate
  - 2) for aluminium or UPVC framed doors a cylinder operated mortice deadlock or a deadlocking multi-point locking system
- B) All other external doors and all internal doors giving access to any part of the buildings not occupied by the Insured for the purpose of the Business be fitted with either
  - 1) any of the locking arrangements as specified in A) 1) or 2) above in accordance with the door frame or
  - 2) two key operated security bolts for doors one fitted approximately 30cm from the top of the door and the other 30cm from the bottom
- C) All ground floor and basement opening windows/skylights and other opening windows/skylights accessible from roofs decks balconies fire escapes canopies or down pipes be fitted with key-operated window locks. This requirement does not apply to window/skylights which are protected by solid steel bars grilles lockable gates expanded metal or weld-mesh provided agreement shall have been obtained from the company and is stated on the Schedule

Any door or window officially designated a fire exit by the fire authority is excluded from these requirements

- D) Each item of electronic equipment with an individual replacement value of £1,000 or greater must be
  - 1) permanently and prominently marked with the post code of the Premises and either the owner's name or company logo

or

 securely anchored to the desk work station or to the structure of the building by a hold down device approved by the Company the keys to which have been removed from the Premises or contained in a securely locked safe the keys to which have been removed from the Premises

# Money Insurance

# **Section 1 Money**

The Company will pay to the Insured up to the Limit of Liability for any loss of or damage to the Money and property described in Items 1 to 6 below provided that

- A) as regards Item 3 the loss or damage is due to robbery or attempt thereat
- B) as regards Item 5 the loss or damage is due to theft or attempt thereat and
- C) the Company's liability in respect of any one occurrence or number of occurrences arising directly or indirectly from any one source or original cause shall not exceed the relevant Limit of Liability

Item No		<b>Limit of Liability</b> any one loss
1	Money as described in Interpretation 1A  A in the Insured's Premises during Working Hours or in transit or in a bank night safe and thereafter within bank premises until at the bank's risk	As shown in the Schedule
	<ul> <li>B) in the Insured's Premises out of Working Hours</li> <li>1) in locked safes or strongrooms as shown in the Schedule</li> <li>2) in all other locked safes or strongrooms</li> <li>3) not in a locked safe or strongroom</li> </ul>	As shown in the Schedule £2,000 in total £500
	<ul> <li>C) in the Insured's residence or that of the Insured's directors partners or employees</li> <li>1) whilst in a locked safe or whilst an adult is in the residence</li> <li>2) otherwise</li> </ul>	£500 £250
2	Money as described in Interpretation 1B	£250,000
3	Clothing and personal effects (not exceeding £25 per person in personal money) belonging to the Insured or any of the Insured's directors partners or employees whilst engaged in the Business	£250 per person
4	Stamped or impressed National Insurance Cards	Unlimited
5	Any postal franking machine safe strongroom or any container or waistcoat used for the carriage of Money belonging to the Insured or for which the Insured is responsible	Unlimited
6	Airline Tickets	As shown in the Schedule

# **Exclusions**

The Company shall not be liable for

- 1) loss by theft by any director partner or employee of the Insured not discovered within seven working days of the occurrence
- 2) shortage due to error or omission
- 3) loss from an unattended vehicle
- 4) loss due to the use of counterfeit Money
- 5) loss or damage arising from riot or civil commotion in Northern Ireland and the Republic of Ireland
- 6) losses not within Great Britain Northern Ireland the Republic of Ireland and the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man
- 7) loss destruction or damage directly occasioned by pressure waves caused by aircraft or other aerial devices travelling at sonic or supersonic speeds
- 8) the first £50 of each and every loss

# **Interpretations**

- 1 Money shall mean
  - A cash bank notes currency notes uncrossed cheques (including travellers cheques but excluding pre-signed blank cheques) uncrossed bankers' drafts uncrossed postal orders uncrossed money orders current postage and revenue stamps National Insurance stamps (not fixed to cards) National Savings stamps bills of exchange luncheon vouchers consumer redemption vouchers Holiday with Pay stamps gift tokens trading stamps

Ascot Office Policy Wording V1 Page 44 of 52

B crossed cheques (other than pre-signed blank cheques) crossed banker's drafts crossed giro cheques and drafts crossed postal orders crossed money orders unused units in franking machines National Savings certificates Premium Bonds credit company sales vouchers VAT purchase invoices

belonging to the Insured or for which the Insured is responsible and pertaining to the Business

## 2 Working Hours shall mean

the period during which the Premises are actually occupied for Business purposes and during which the Insured or those of the Insured's employees who are entrusted with Money are in the Premises

# **Special Conditions**

# 1 Security Precautions

It is a condition precedent to the Company's liability for loss or damage that

A) in respect of any Intruder Alarm System installed at the Premises

- 1) the Intruder Alarm System is maintained in full and effective working order under a contract to provide both corrective and preventive maintenance with the installer or such other contractor agreed by the Company in writing
- 2) the Business Premises are not left unattended
  - A) unless the Intruder Alarm System is tested and set in its entirety and is together with the means of communication used to transmit signals in full and effective operation and where the equipment permits any Alarm Receiving Centre to which the Intruder Alarm System is connected has acknowledged the setting signal
  - B) if police response to alarm calls has been withdrawn without the written agreement of the Company
- 3) where the Intruder Alarm System is required or approved by the Company as a condition of cover it is installed in accordance with a specification agreed in writing by the Company
- 4) no alteration to or substitution of
  - A) any part of the Intruder Alarm System
  - B) the procedures agreed by the Insured for police or any other response to any activation of or other warning signal pertaining to the Intruder Alarm System
  - C) the maintenance contract
  - shall be made without the written agreement of the Company
- 5) no structural alteration of or changes in layout to the Premises that could affect operation of the Intruder Alarm System shall be made without the written agreement of the Company
- 6) the Insured shall maintain secrecy of codes for operation of the Intruder Alarm System and shall not leave details of such codes at the Business Premises when the Business Premises are unattended
- 7) the Insured shall appoint at least two Keyholders and shall record details of the Keyholders with the police and any Alarm Receiving Centre to which the Intruder Alarm System signals
- 8) any change of Keyholder details shall be notified immediately to the police and any Alarm Receiving Centre to which the Intruder Alarm System signals
- 9) in the event of notification of any activation of the Intruder Alarm System or interruption of the means of communication during any period that the system is set a Keyholder shall attend and allow access to the Business Premises without delay
- 10) in the event that the Insured receives any notification
  - A) from the police alarm installer/maintenance contractor or Alarm Receiving Centre that response to alarm signals or line interruptions from the Intruder Alarm System may be withdrawn or the level of response reduced or delayed
  - B) from a Local Authority or Magistrate imposing any requirement for abatement of nuisance
  - C) that the Intruder Alarm System cannot be returned to or maintained in full working order the Insured shall advise the Company as soon as possible and in any event not later than 10am on the Company's next working day and comply with any subsequent requirements stipulated by the Company
- B) whenever the Business Premises are left unattended
  - 1) all locks bolts and other protective devices are in full and effective operation
  - 2) all keys (including those relating to any part of the Intruder Alarm System) are removed from the Business Premises

C) out of working Hours all keys and notes of combination lock letters and numbers of safes and strong rooms containing Money are removed from the Business Premises

### **Interpretations**

Intruder Alarm System includes all lines and equipment used to transmit the signals to and from the Premises

Keyholder shall mean any person or keyholding company authorised by the Insured who is available at all times when the Intruder Alarm System is set to accept notification of faults or alarm signals or messages relating to the Intruder Alarm System

Business Premises shall mean that part of the Premises occupied by the Insured for the purpose of the Business described in the Schedule

#### 2 Contribution

If at the time of any claim under this Section the Insured is or would but for the existence of this Policy be entitled to indemnity under any other policy or policies the Company shall not be liable except in respect of any excess beyond the amount which would have been payable under such other policy or policies had this Section not been effected

#### 3 Airline Tickets

In respect of Airline Tickets

- A) the liability of the Company shall be limited to loss following theft involving forcible and violent entry to or exit from the premises or following actual or threatened assault or violence
- B) it shall be a condition precedent to liability that
  - i) no ticket shall be stamped until the time of issue
  - ii) all tickets shall be kept in a locked safe or strongroom
  - iii) the stamp must be kept in a locked safe or cabinet separate from the tickets out of business hours
  - iv) the Insured shall prove to the Company's satisfaction that within six months of the date of theft that the tickets are fraudulently used
  - v) the Insured are held liable for the loss by the International Air Transport Authority

# **Section 2 Personal Injury (Robbery)**

In the event of the Insured or any director partner or employee of the Insured (hereinafter called the Insured Person) sustaining accidental Bodily Injury which

- A) is sustained solely and directly as a result of robbery or attempt thereat while such Insured Person is engaged in the Business and
- B) within two years is the sole cause of Death Disablement or incurring of Medical Expenses for which the Benefit is claimed The Company will pay the appropriate Benefit to the Insured in accordance with the number of Units of cover as shown in the Schedule

Bodily Injury does not include sickness or disease or any naturally occurring condition or degenerative process or the result of a gradually operating cause

#### **Exclusions**

The Company will not pay the Benefit if

- 1 Bodily Injury is sustained by any person before such person attains the age of sixteen years or after the expiry of the Period of Insurance during which such person attains the age of seventy five years
- 2 Bodily Injury Death Disablement or Medical Expenses is the result of or is contributed to by the Insured Person having a physical or mental defect of any sort which was known either to the Insured or the Insured Person when the Policy was issued or at renewal However the exclusion shall not apply if the defect has been notified to the Company and accepted in writing

# **Interpretations**

- 1 Benefit shall mean
  - 1 Death
    - Disablement
  - 2 Loss of one or more Limbs or Eyes
  - 3 Permanent Total Disablement other than by Loss of Limb or Eye from gainful employment of any and every kind
  - 4 Temporary Total Disablement from usual occupation
  - 5 Medical Expenses necessarily incurred in the treatment of the Insured Person
- 2 The amount payable for each Unit of cover shall be

#### Benefit

- 1 £5000
- 2 £5000
- 3 £5000
- 4 £50 per week for a maximum of 104 weeks in all and not necessarily consecutive
- 5 Reimbursement up to 15% of the amount payable under Benefit 4
- 3 Loss of Limb shall mean

- A) in the case of a leg loss by physical severance at or above the ankle or permanent total loss of use of a complete foot or leg
- B) in the case of an arm loss by physical severance of the entire four fingers through or above the meta carpo phalangeal joints or permanent total loss of use of a complete arm or hand
- 4 Loss of Eye shall mean permanent and total loss of sight which will be considered as having occurred
  - A) in both eyes if the Insured Person's name is added to the Register of Blind Persons on the authority of a fully qualified ophthalmic specialist
  - B) in one eye if the degree of sight remaining after corrections is 3/60 or less on the Snellen scale (meaning seeing at 3 feet what the Insured Person should see at 60 feet)
- 5 Medical Expenses shall mean the cost of medical surgical or other remedial attention treatment or appliances given or prescribed by a qualified member of the medical profession and all hospital nursing home and ambulance charges

# Fidelity Insurance

#### Cover

The Company will indemnify the Insured

- 1 against direct loss of money or goods belonging to them or for which they are legally responsible caused by any act of Theft committed during the Period of Insurance by any Employee described in the Schedule normally resident within the Geographical Limits and discovered not later than 24 months after the termination of
  - A) this insurance
  - B) the insurance in respect of any Employee specified by name or position

whichever occurs first

- 2 for auditor's fees incurred with the Company's written consent solely to substantiate the amount of the claim
- 3 for the reasonable cost of re-writing or amending the software programs or systems where such rewriting or amending is necessary to correct the programs or amend the security codes following the fraudulent use of computer hardware or software programs or computer systems the subject of a claim for which liability is admitted under the Policy

#### **Previous Insurance**

If this insurance immediately supersedes a Fidelity Insurance effected by the Insured (the 'Superseded Insurance') the Company will indemnify the Insured in respect of any loss discovered during the continuation of this insurance but committed during the continuation of the Superseded Insurance if the loss is not recoverable thereunder solely because the period allowed for discovery has expired

### Provided that

- 1 such insurance had been continuously in force from the time of the loss until inception of this insurance
- 2 the loss would have been insured by this insurance had it been in force at the time of the loss
- 3 the liability of the Company shall not exceed whichever is the lesser of
  - A) the amount recoverable under the insurance in force at the time of the loss or
  - B) the Limit of Indemnity under this insurance

In any event the total liability of the Company in respect of any One Claim continuing through both the term of the Superseded Insurance and the continuation of this insurance shall not exceed the Limit of Indemnity applicable under this insurance

#### **Non-Contribution - Legal Liability**

If at the time of loss of money or goods for which the Insured is legally responsible or at the time a claim for such property arises the Insured is or would but for the existence of this insurance be entitled to indemnity under any other insurance or to recovery under any guarantee or indemnity fund the Company shall not be liable except in respect of any excess beyond the amount which would have been payable under such other insurance guarantee or fund had this insurance not been effected

# **Application of Limitations**

Irrespective of the number of Periods of Insurance during which this insurance (and any insurance issued in substitution therefor) shall remain in force the total liability of the Company in respect of any One Claim shall not exceed the Limit of Indemnity

#### Limitations

The liability of the Company in respect of any One Claim caused by one employee shall not exceed the Limit of Indemnity applicable to that Employee The liability of the Company in respect of all claims during any one Period of Insurance shall not exceed the Aggregate Limit of Indemnity specified in the Schedule

In the event that One Claim is caused by two or more Employees Acting In Collusion the liability of the Company in all shall not exceed whichever of the individual limits of indemnity applicable to the Employees involved is the greater

### **Exclusions**

The Company shall not be liable for

- 1 loss of interest or consequential loss of any kind
- 2 the amount of the Insured's Contribution
- 3 loss caused by any act of any Employee committed prior to the Commencement Date applicable to that Employee

# **Interpretations**

#### **Theft**

shall include any act of fraud or dishonesty by any Employee committed with the clear intent of obtaining an improper financial gain for themselves or for any other person or organisation intended by the Employee to receive such gain other than salaries fees commission or other employee benefit earned in the normal course of employment

# **Employee**

shall mean any person

- A) under a contract of service or apprenticeship with the Insured or
- B) undergoing training under any Government approved training scheme under the control of the Insured in connection with the Business whilst in the service of the Insured

#### **Commencement Date**

shall mean the date from which insurance in respect of any employee commenced

#### Whilst in the service of the Insured

shall include the period of 30 days immediately following the termination of service

# The term **Employee** shall include

- A) any director of the Insured if such person
  - 1) is also employed by the Insured under a contract of service and
  - 2) controls no more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Insured company or of any subsidiary of the Insured company
- B) any person retired from full-time employment with the Insured who is working for the Insured as a consultant under the control or direction of the Insured

#### **Geographical Limits**

shall mean Great Britain Northern Ireland the Channel Islands and the Isle of Man

## **Insured's Contribution**

the first part of any One Claim borne by the Insured as specified in the Schedule or as otherwise provided for by this Policy

#### One Claim

shall mean all acts of Theft throughout the continuation of this insurance (or any insurance issued in substitution therefor or for which this insurance is substituted) committed by one individual Employee or by two or more Employees Acting in Collusion

# **Acting in Collusion**

shall mean all circumstances where two or more Employees are concerned or implicated together or materially assist each other in committing the acts of Theft

# **Minimum Standards of Control**

#### Auditors

The accounts of the Insured including all subsidiary companies shall be examined by external auditors every twelve months All recommendations or alternatives acceptable to the auditors shall be implemented without delay

#### **Cash receipts**

Employees receiving cash and cheques in the course of their duties shall be required to remit all monies received and/or bank in full on the day of receipt or next banking day

#### Reconciliation

Independently of Employees responsible bank statements receipts counterfoils and supporting documents are checked at least monthly against cash book entries and the balance tested with cash and unpresented cheques

## **Cheque signing**

All cheques or other bank instruments drawn for more than £25,000 shall require two manually applied signatures to be added after the amount has been inserted

No cheque or instrument shall be signed until one signatory has examined the supporting documentation

The Insured's bankers shall be advised of the above requirements as to signatures

# Cash and petty cash

Cash in hand and petty cash shall be checked independently of Employees responsible at least monthly and additionally without warning every six months

### **Payroll**

In respect of Employees not paid by crossed cheque or credit transfer the cast of the payroll will be subject to an independent check before payment to ensure that the total amount drawn is correct

At least quarterly and independently of persons responsible the payroll will be checked to minimise the possibility that fictitious names and enhanced payments have been included

#### Stocktaking

There will be a physical check on all stock and materials held against verified stock records independent of Employees responsible at intervals of not more than 12 months except where otherwise stated herein

# **Ordering goods**

Employees acting independently shall be responsible for the ordering of stock and materials the recording of receipt of such and the authorising of payment for them

#### Statements of account

Statements of account for all amounts due will be issued at least monthly and direct to customers independently of Employees receiving or collecting monies

Action by management shall be taken if an account becomes three months overdue

# **Computer security**

Security checks will be built into all computer functions with reconciliations made as necessary

Responsibility for authorisation of transactions processing of transactions and handling of output shall be exercised by different Employees

### **Annual holiday entitlement**

Every Employee who will be responsible for money goods accounts computer operations or computer programming shall be required to take an uninterrupted holiday of at least 2 weeks in each calendar year during which they perform no duties and are required to stay away from their place of work

### **Minimum Standards of Control Condition**

The Insured shall operate or bring into force the Minimum Standards of Control and shall not make any change to any of the minimum standards unless the Company is advised and its written approval obtained

All Employees shall be instructed as to their duties or responsibilities in respect of the minimum standards and be expected to comply

Compliance with this condition is a condition precedent to any liability of the Company

### 20/80 extension

In the event that any claim results from or is contributed to by the failure of any Employee or Employees to observe any part of the Minimum Standards of Control provided that the Insured can conclusively demonstrate

- A) that they had complied with the condition stated above and
- B) such failure was without their knowledge or consent or that of any Responsible Official

Then the Company will pay any claim resulting therefrom but subject to the Insured bearing

A) in addition to the amount of the Insured's Contribution 20% of the amount for which the Company would otherwise have been liable or

B) £2,500 in all

Whichever shall be the greater

### A Responsible Official shall mean

- A) any director or executive officer or accounting or audit manager of the Insured or of any subsidiary company whose Employees are insured by this policy
- B) any internal auditor inspector accountant or other person responsible for overseeing compliance with standards of supervision accounting or security

If the minimum standards are evaded by the actual Employee or Employees committing the theft without the knowledge of some other person who is a Responsible Official or of the Insured the claim will be payable without deduction subject otherwise to the terms of the Policy

#### **References Condition**

The Insured shall obtain satisfactory references to confirm the honesty of each Employee who will be responsible for money goods accounts computer operations or computer programming engaged after commencement of this Policy

Such references shall be obtained directly from former employers for the three years immediately preceding engagement and before the Employee is entrusted without supervision

References need not be obtained in respect of Employees who have satisfactorily and continuously served the Insured for at least one year in another capacity before being entrusted with the duties referred to above

In respect of Employees joining directly from school or government sponsored youth training schemes one character reference shall be obtained

A written record of any verbal reference shall be made at the time it is obtained the original copy of each written reference and the record of any verbal reference shall be retained by the Insured and shall be made available for inspection by the Company on request

## **Temporary Agency Staff Extension**

#### The term Employee shall include

any person furnished by a staff or employment agency who by arrangement with such agency is working for the Insured on a temporary or part-time basis in connection with the business to perform the functions and duties of an Employee under the control or direction of the Insured but not including persons employed as drivers or in connection with warehouse duties or with computer operations or computer programming unless specifically stated as insured herein

### Provided that

- 1 the Company shall not be liable for any loss caused by any such person if such loss is also covered for the benefit of the Insured by any insurance or guarantee held by the staff or employment agency furnishing the person concerned
- 2 the amount of wages and salaries declared shall include the total amount of fees paid to staff and employment agencies in respect of temporary agency staff described above
- 3 The References Condition shall not apply to the temporary agency staff described above

### **Pension Fund Trustees Extension**

At the request of the Insured the Company will indemnify the Trustees of any pension fund or other employee benefit scheme set up to provide benefit to the Insured's Employees in respect of any loss of money or goods which the Trust may incur as a result of any act of Theft as otherwise insured by this Policy committed by any Employee of the Insured

For the purpose of this extension all persons nominated as Trustees shall be deemed Employees

# **Special Conditions**

- 1 Immediately following the discovery by the Insured of any act of Theft by an Employee all indemnity for further acts of Theft by that Employee shall cease
- **2** A) Any money of the Employee in the Insured's hands upon discovery of any loss and any money which but for the Employee's Theft
  - would have been due to the Employee from the Insured shall be deducted from the amount of the loss before a claim is made under this insurance
  - B) Any further monies which are recovered less any costs incurred in recovery shall accrue
    - 1) in the event that the Insured's claim has exceeded the Limit of Indemnity firstly to the benefit of the Insured to reduce or extinguish the amount of the Insured's loss (but not the Insured's Contribution)
    - 2) thereafter to the benefit of the Company to the extent of the claim paid or payable
    - 3) and finally to the benefit of the Insured where the Insured's Contribution had been deducted from the claim
- **3** Upon the termination of service of any Employee the Insured shall take all reasonable security precautions to prevent Theft by that Employee

### Memorandum

## **Index Linking**

The Company will adjust the estimate of wages provided by the Insured and on which the premium for this Insurance is based in line with suitable indices of costs and the premium for renewal will be based on the adjusted amount.

Ascot Office Policy Wording V1 Page 52 of 52